
 

 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

AGENDA 
Regular Meeting NO. 2012-19 
Tuesday, October 30, 2012 

 
5:00 PM 

 
MEETING LOCATION: Citizens’ Meeting Room, Centennial Hall; 
    124 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO 
 
MEETING PROCEDURE: Comments from the Public are welcome at two different 
times during the course of the meeting: 1) Comments no longer than three (3) minutes 
on items not scheduled on the Agenda will be heard under Public Comment; and 2) 
Comments no longer than three (3) minutes on all scheduled public hearing items will 
be heard following the presentation by Staff or the Petitioner. Please wait until you are 
recognized by the Council President. 
 
With the exception of subjects brought up during Public Comment, on which no action 
will be taken or a decision made, the City Council may take action on, and may make a 
decision regarding, ANY item referred to in this agenda, including, without limitation, any 
item referenced for “review”, “update”, “report”, or “discussion”. It is City Council’s goal 
to adjourn all meetings by 10:00 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or at the end of 
the meeting, (whichever comes first).  
 
CITY COUNCIL WILL MAKE NO DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY 
MANAGER. THOSE ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES 
BY NAME AND ADDRESS. ALL COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 

 
 
 

ROLL CALL (5:00 PM)   
 

COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC:   
 

1. Golf Committee Interviews.   
 

2. US Pro Cycling Local Organizing Committee announcing their 



 

 

application for the 2013 event, requesting sponsorship and asking for 
a letter of support.  (Hinsvark/Jim Schneider) 

 
3. Information, possible motion concerning the Police/Fire Facility 

location.  (Hinsvark/Rae) 
 

CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES FIRST 
READINGS   
 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE COUNCIL 
DELIBERATION AND MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION. ANY MEMBER OF THE 
COUNCIL OR THE PUBLIC MAY WITHDRAW ANY ITEM FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR 
FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO APPROVAL. 

 
4. RESOLUTION:  A resolution approving the 2013 Operating Plan and 

budget of the Downtown Steamboat Springs Business Improvement 
District and reappointing two members of the Board of Directors.  
(Tracy Barnett) 

 
5. RESOLUTION:  A resolution acknowledging appointments to the Routt 

County Combined Communications Center Advisory Board.  (Rae) 
 

6. RESOLUTION:  A resolution reappointing Paul Sachs as the 
Steamboat Springs Municipal Judge, reaffirming the appointment of 
Jonathan Melvin as Deputy Municipal Judge and fixing compensation 
for both positions for 2013 and 2014.  (Lettunich) 

 
7. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance adopting the budget 

and setting appropriations for the City of Steamboat Springs, 
Colorado, for and during the period beginning the first day of January, 
2013, and ending the thirty-first day of December, 2013.  (Weber) 

 
8. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance approving the Fourth 

Supplemental Budget Appropriation of 2012.  (Weber) 
 

PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS   
 

THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OR PRESIDENT PRO-TEM WILL READ EACH ORDINANCE 
TITLE INTO THE RECORD. PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE PROVIDED FOR EVERY 
ORDINANCE. 

 
9. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance vacating utility 

easements located in Airport Meadows, Filing 1, Lots 1 and 2, and 
providing an effective date and setting a hearing date.  (Keenan) 

 
10. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE:  An ordinance authorizing the 



 

 

City Manager to impose and lift fire restrictions; repealing all 
conflicting ordinances; and providing an effective date.  (Foote) 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT: PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE PROVIDED AT 7 P.M., OR AT 
THE END OF THE MEETING, (WHICHEVER COMES FIRST).   
 

CITY COUNCIL WILL MAKE NO DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE 
CITY MANAGER. THOSE ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY 
THEMSELVES BY NAME AND ADDRESS. ALL COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE 
MINUTES. 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT   
 
 

There is no report scheduled. 
  

 

CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS:   
 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE OR NO COUNCIL 
DELIBERATION AND MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION. A CITY COUNCIL 
MEMBER MAY REQUEST AN ITEM(S) BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR 
FURTHER DISCUSSION. ALL ORDINANCES APPROVED BY CONSENT SHALL BE READ 
INTO THE RECORD BY TITLE. 

 
 

There are no items scheduled on the this portion of the agenda. 
  

 

PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS   
 

PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT:  

• Presentation by the Petitioner (estimated at 15 minutes). Petitioner to state name and 
residence address/location. 

• Presentation by the Opposition. Same guidelines as above. 
• Public Comment by individuals (not to exceed 3 minutes). Individuals to state name and 

residence address/location. 
• City staff to provide a response. 

 
11. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance amending the 

International Building Code 2006 Edition in Chapter 5, Article 1, 
Section 5-3: International Building Code-Amendments and Deletions 
to add an exception to allow a boarding house to comply with the 
International Residential Code.  (Peasley) 

 

REPORTS   



 

 

 
12. City Council   

 
13. Reports   

 
a. Agenda Review:  (Franklin) 

 
1. City Council agenda for November 13, 2012.   

 
2. City Council agenda for November 20, 2012.   

 
14. Staff Reports   

 
a. City Attorney’s Update/Report.  (Lettunich) 

 
1. City Charter – Amendment – information/discussion.   

 
b. Interim Manager’s Report: Ongoing Projects.  (Hinsvark) 

 
1. City Manager Search Process.  (Small) 

 

ADJOURNMENT   
 
 
        BY:  JULIE FRANKLIN, CMC 

CITY CLERK 



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 1. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM: Valerie Dietrich, Staff Assistant (Ext. 225)  

 
THROUGH: Julie Franklin, City Clerk (Ext. 248) 
 
DATE: October 30, 2012 

 
ITEM: Golf Management Committee interviews. 
 
NEXT STEP: Conduct interviews of 6 applicants and determine 

which candidates will fill the 3 available positions. 
 
 
 _X_ DIRECTION 
 ___ INFORMATION   
 ___ ORDINANCE  
 ___ MOTION 
 ___ RESOLUTION 
 
 
I. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Three positions on the Golf Management Committee will be open beginning 
November 1, 2012.  These are all 3 year regular positions.  Of the vacating 
positions, one is held (and will continue to be held) by a representative of the 
Lodging Community. The other two are regular 3 year positions.   
 
Of the three committee members whose terms will be up on October 31, 2012, two 
wish to reapply for their positions, Barbara Robinson (whom currently represents 
the Lodging Community) and John Vanderbloemen.   
 
There are six applicants including Barbara and John for these 3 positions.  It 
appears that of these six, Barbara is the only representative of the Lodging 
Community.  The applications submitted to the Clerk’s office are included as 
attachments to this item.   
 
 

1.1



 

 

 
 
II. LOCATION: 
 
Crawford Room. 
 
III. INTERVIEW SCHEDULE: 
 
5:05 Barbara Robinson 
 
5:11 Tony Counts 
 
5:17 John Vanderbloemen 
 
5:23 Doug Labor 
 
5:29 AJ Fleming 
 
5:35 Craig Seitz 
 
5:41 Select 3 candidates to fill these positions. 
  
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Barbara Robinson’s application 
Attachment 2 - Recommendation for Barbara Robinson from the Steamboat  
   Springs Chamber Resort Association Lodging Committee. 
Attachment 3 - Tony Count’s application 
Attachment 4 - John Vanderbloemen’s application 
Attachment 5 - Doug Labor’s application 
Attachment 6 - AJ Fleming’s application 
Attachment 7 - Craig Seitz’s application 
 
 
 
 

1.2



Attachment 1

1.3



1.4



1.5



1.6



1.7



Attachment 2

1.8



Attachment 3

1.9



1.10



1.11



1.12



1.13



City of Steamboat Springs 

APPLICATION FOR BOARDS/COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS 

DEADLINE TO SUBMIT APPLICATION TO CITY CLERK: 

Please type or print with black ink.  If you have questions or need more 
information, contact Julie Franklin, City Clerk at 871-8248.  Return completed 
application to City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 137 10th Street, Post Office Box 
775088, Steamboat Springs, CO  80477. 

BOARD/COMMISSION APPLYING FOR:     Golf Management Committee

NAME:   John A. Vanderbloemen        

RESIDENCE ADDRESS: 675 Pamela Lane,  Steamboat Springs   

MAILING ADDRESS:   P.O. Box 2000, Steamboat Springs, CO 80477  

HOME PHONE:   879-5377   WORK PHONE:   879-0100  

FAX:   870-0960    E-MAIL ADDRESS:  jav@lvlaw.net 

HOW LONG HAVE YOU BEEN A RESIDENT OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS? 
Continuously since 1980      

CURRENT OCCUPATION/EMPLOYER: 
Attorney/Partner-Lettunich & Vanderbloemen, LLC-1980-present 

PREVIOUS WORK EXPERIENCE: 
Village Center Ski Rentals, Steamboat, shop manager-1976-77 
U.S. Army-1972-75, translator/interpreter, golf instructor 

APPLICABLE COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES/VOLUNTEER WORK: 
1981-89 Routt County Attorney/Social Services Attorney (part-time 
contract)
Early 90’s-Steamboat Springs Arts Council Board (Board President-1993-
94)
14th Judicial District-Judicial Nominating Commission (1988-1993) 
14th Judicial District-Judicial Performance Commission (1999-2007) 

Attachment 4

1.14



2003-present- Steamboat Springs High School Golf Team Committee 
2009-present-Partners in Routt County Board of Directors 

SPECIAL QUALIFICATIONS APPLICABLE TO THE BOARD/COMMISSION: 
I have been involved in golf all my life.  Growing up, it was caddying, 
working in golf pro shops, playing junior golf to college golf at University 
of North Carolina, then competitive amateur golf in Carolinas and east 
coast.  After the draft, I played on the Army golf team in 1973 and played 
amateur golf in Europe.  In 1975, I was head golf instructor at a small Army 
golf facility in Berchtesgaden, Germany. After the Army, I briefly worked 
golf course maintenance at a quality course and ran the pro shop counter 
at a country club in N.C., while considering golf as a career.  Instead I 
moved to Steamboat Springs in 1976, worked one year as a ski shop 
manager and then went to law school.  I am extremely fortunate to have 
played many excellent courses, both public access resort venues and 
private clubs in the U.S. and Europe.

After moving back to Steamboat in 1980, I had very limited involvement 
with golf until City Manager (Harvey Rose) in (about) 1993 asked me to 
serve on a new advisory committee being formed to explore golf course 
ideas for the City land that is now Haymaker.  I was appointed to the 
original Golf Advisory Committee (12 member), which transitioned into the 
current 5 member Golf Management Committee when course was 
completed and opened in 1997.  I have served on this Committee since the 
course opened. 

My legal background for 32 years in dealing with many aspects of civil law, 
including land use, real estate, governmental, insurance defense law and 
risk management gives me an unusual perspective on Haymaker 
operations issues.  My golf background helps me understand what the 
golfing public should reasonably expect to experience at Haymaker.  

WHY DO YOU WANT TO SERVE ON THE   Golf Management Committee  
?
      (Board or commission applying for) 

Seeing the entire Haymaker facility-both golf and clubhouse-fulfill its 
potential as a golf venue and as a city asset is a passion of mine.  I 
seriously considered not reapplying for the Committee, but feel that my 
experience and knowledge can provide stability and direction. I would 
sincerely welcome the opportunity to serve another term on this 
Committee.

1.15



WHAT, IN YOUR OPINION, ARE THE THREE MOST PRESSING ISSUES 
FACING THE CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS RELATIVE TO THE 
BOARD/COMMISSION FOR WHICH YOU ARE APPLYING? 

BALANCE THE BUDGET:  Haymaker must not only break even on 
operational revenues vs. expenses but also create reserves as the 
economy improves.  Rates must be adjusted slightly and new 
products/packages considered to reach this goal.  The new transferable 
punchcard has increased punch card revenues by $56,000+ over 2011.  

IMPROVE MARKETING:  In cooperation with Jim Snyder from Haymaker 
Patio Grill and the Ski Corp marketing staff, the Committee has the 
opportunity to develop an improved marketing plan and social media plan 
that connects with local lodges and the Chamber to drive more tourist 
rounds. If tourist rounds can be increased, rates can remain at reasonable 
levels, and Haymaker can fulfill its larger mission to the City as an 
economic generator and as an attractor of new residents. 

LONG TERM CAPITAL NEEDS:  Refine the long term capital needs 
spreadsheet that defines the costs and timing for future capital projects, 
both facilities and equipment related.

OTHER COMMENTS: 

I have been honored to be a part of this Committee and greatly appreciate 
the support, which has been provided by City Councils and City 
management  staff over the years.   

Please attach any documentation that would enhance your application.  

All applications must be turned into City Hall, 137 10th Street,
Attn: City Clerk’s Office 
or e-mailed to atribble@steamboatsprings.net

     John A. Vanderbloemen 

     Signature 

     10/15/09 
     Date

1.16



Attachment 5

1.17



1.18



1.19



1.20



Attachment 6

1.21



1.22



1.23



��������	�
������	�������
�

���������������������	��������  	������		���	�
�

�
Please type or print with black ink.  If you have questions or need more 
information, contact Julie Franklin, City Clerk at 871-8248.  Return completed 
application to City Clerk’s Office, City Hall, 137 10th Street, Post Office Box 
775088, Steamboat Springs, CO  80477. 
�
�����������		��������!��"����#��Golf Management Committee��������
�
��� #��Craig D. Seitz� � � � �
�
� 	�� �� ����� 		#��3341 Willow Brook Court, Steamboat Springs, CO�
�
������"����� 		#��3341 Willow Brook Court, Steamboat Springs, CO�
�
$�� ��$�� #��875-1225� � %��&��$�� #��871-6282�
�
��'#��871-6282� � �  (��������� 		#��seitz@alpenarchitek.com�
�
$�%����"�$�) �!�*��  ����� 	�� ������	� �������	����"	+��12 years�
�
�*�� ������*������� ����! �#��
�

Alpen Architek, LLC 
Steamboat Springs, CO 
Owner/Principal 
10 years�

�
�� )��*	�%��&� '� �� �� #�
�

Eric Smith Associates, PC 
Steamboat Springs, CO 
Boulder, CO�

�
��������� �����*���!�����)��� 	�)��*��  ��%��&#�

�
• Current local Home Owners Association (President - 8+ years) 
• Local Home Owners Association (Vice President --- 2 years) 
• Haymaker Junior Golf Program/Tournament - Volunteer 
• S.S. High School ‘‘Sailor Shoot-Out” Tournament Volunteer/Participant 
• S.S.W.S.C. ‘‘Moose is Loose’’ Tournament Volunteer/Participant 
• S.S.W.S.C.- Volunteer 
• Steamboat Ski Resort- Competition Services Volunteer�

Attachment 7

1.24



	� �����,*�����������	���������� �����$ ������������		���#�
�
• Knowledge and understanding of Haymaker Golf Course; golf course 

operations; pro shop; maintenance and restaurant operations. 
• Reliable public visibility and accessibility enabling Haymaker Golf Course 

patron’s and/or employees the ability to easily direct comments, concerns 
or questions toward Golf Management Committee regarding Haymaker 
Golf Course operations. 

• Active participant and/or volunteer in local golf tournaments, fund raisers, 
special events and functions at Haymaker Golf Course and throughout the 
City of Steamboat Springs. 

• Haymaker Golf Course season pass holder (10+ years) 
• Current Owner/Principal local Steamboat Springs business (10+ years)  
• Current President of local Home Owners Association (8+ years) 
• Strong creativity, leadership and management abilities.�

�
�
%$!����!�*�%�������	 �) �����$ ����������	

��+�-����.����
/�������������0��������1�

�
My interest in serving on the City of Steamboat Springs Golf Management 
Committee for Haymaker Golf Course is multi-faceted. 

 
First, Haymaker is my "home course," so I have a personal interest in its 
success. I have held a season pass at Haymaker since moving to Steamboat 
Springs over a decade ago and play regularly. This frequency and familiarity 
has fostered a strong bond to the facility itself, its staff and the golfing 
community it serves ------ both "local" and visitors alike. 
 
My interest in serving as a Committee member is to ensure that Haymaker 
Golf Course: 

 
• strives to be recognized as one of the finest public golf facilities in 

Colorado; 
• consistently provides a first-class recreational experience to its patrons; 

and 
• is operated in a manner that best serves the interests of the City of 

Steamboat Springs, its residents and the golfing community. 
 

I believe my passion for the sport of golf, intimacy with the Haymaker facility 
and its operations and rapport with its patrons, combined with my business 
sense and executive managerial experience, make me an excellent 
candidate and a tremendous asset to the Steamboat Springs Golf 
Management Committee and the interests it serves. I am confident that this 
combination of assets would allow me to bring fresh, positive, creative 
energy, influence and effectiveness to the Committee.     

1.25



�
�
%$��2� ��� !�*�� �������2� �� � �$ � �$�  � ��	�� �� 		��"� �		* 	� �����"�
�$ � ���!� ��� 	� ������� 	����"	� � ����) � ��� �$ � �����������		����
����%$��$�!�*��� �����!��"+�

�
In my opinion, the most pressing issues facing the Golf Management 
Committee are in the following areas: 
 
Golf Course Operations Budget including: 
  
 Golf Course Maintenance 

• projected repair / replacement expenses for aging irrigation system; 
• maintenance management, staffing and seasonal budget; 
• projected rodent damage repair, maintenance and control;   
• maintain overall course maintenance standards; 

 
Golf Course Marketing 
• marketing plan and budget;  
• marketing plan to attract special event tournament play; 
• marketing plan to increase tourism golf sales; 
• marketing plan to improve and expand Junior Golf programs; 

� �
�
�
��$ ������ ��	#�
�

Thank you for your consideration of my interest and qualifications for the 
position of City of Steamboat Springs Golf Management Committee member.    

�
�
�
�
�0
��
�����/3�����.�/4�
���������3���5�40.�
�3��/
���4�����0�/�����6��
�
�00����0�/��������4���
��4��
.�����������$�002�789�7:�3�	��

�2��
����#�������0
�;<������/
� �
� � � �
� � � � � �
�
�
� � �

	�����4�
��������������
�

	
��
�
��=>2�=:7=� �������������������������������������
���
����������������������������������������������������������

1.26



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 2. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM: Deb Hinsvark, Interim City Manager (Ext 240)  
 
DATE: October 30, 2012 

 
ITEM: Motion to send a letter of support to have a stage of 

the 2013 USA Pro Cycling Challenge in Steamboat 
and approval of a $35,000 sponsorship if the effort is 
successful. 

 
NEXT STEP: If approved, Finance Director will add the $35,000 to 

the second reading of the 2013 ordinance. 
 
 
 
 ___ DIRECTION 
 ___ INFORMATION   
 ___ ORDINANCE  
 _X_ MOTION 
 ___ RESOLUTION 
 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE: 
 
The local organizing committee for the USA Pro Cycling Challenge will be applying 
for a stage in the 2013 race in November.  They are requesting a letter of support 
and a sponsorship from the City. 
 
II.   RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends that the requests be approved. 
 
III.   FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
 Proposed Expenditure:   $35,000 
 Funding Source:     Increase anticipated 2013 revenue to   
      accommodate this late addition to the  

2.1



 

 

      2013 budget. 
 
 
IV.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Steamboat hosted a start and finish to the 2011 USAPCC and the City received a 
good deal of national coverage.  It was also a great event for locals and visitors.  
The Local Organizing Committee will once again bid for a stage in the 2013 race.  
Their 2012 bid was not successful. 
 
V.   LEGAL ISSUES: 
 
The City becomes the contracting agent with Medalist, the race owner. 
 
VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
 
Many streets are closed, hundreds of hours of city staff time is given to the event. 
 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 
Council can choose to provide the letter of support or not. 
 
Council can choose to provide a sponsorship (which will go to the local chapter only 
if they are successful in obtaining a stage of the race in 2013) for $35,000, a lesser 
amount or no amount. 
 
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Sponsorship request from the USA Pro Cycling Challenge 2013 
   Steamboat Springs Local Organizing Committee. 
Attachment 2 - Letter of support from the City of Steamboat Springs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.2



Attachment 1 

 

 

Date: October 18, 2012 
 
To:  Steamboat Springs City Council 
 
From: USA Pro Cycling Challenge 2013 

Steamboat Springs Local Organizing Committee “LOC” 
 
Re: Sponsorship request 
 
The Steamboat Springs LOC has reconvened to begin the process of submitting a proposal for the 2013 
edition of the USA Pro Cycling Challenge ‘USAPCC’. As most of you are likely aware, the City of 
Steamboat Springs, with the oversight of the LOC, brought the event to Steamboat Springs in August of 
2011 with great success. 
 
The Request for Proposals ‘RFP’s’ for the 2013 event are expected to be delivered by the end of the 
month of October with submissions due soon following. We have begun the more detailed discussions 
with the USAPCC organizers toward this endeavor and while recognizing that there are no guarantees 
that we would be chosen as a Host City, we do believe we have a very good chance for 2013. 
 
To that end, the LOC would like to request an acceptance by the City of Steamboat Springs to pursue 
this event along with a letter of support, and additionally are seeking a $35,000 sponsorship request in 
the event we are accepted as a Host City. 
 
On behalf of the LOC, we look forward to bringing this exciting event back to Steamboat Springs and 
believe the benefits of this event in our community are extraordinary, and we trust you believe in those 
benefits as well in support of this proposal. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Jim Schneider 

2.3



USAPCC  2013 - LOC Chairman 
 
 
 

2.4



   
 

Attachment 2 
 
 
 
 
October 30, 2012 
 
Kelly Green 
Vice-President, Event Management 
Medalist Sports 
 
Re: 2013 USA Pro Cycling Challenge 
 
Dear Ms. Green, 
 
The City of Steamboat Springs is in full support of and strongly urges you to 
consider the application for Steamboat Springs to be a site on the 2013 USA Pro 
Cycling Challenge Bike Race. 
 
Steamboat Springs is well versed in hosting international events and large groups 
of visitors being the locale of world class skiing competitions such as the World 
Cup. Additionally, in 2011 Steamboat Springs was the host of a finish and start 
for the USA Pro Cycling Challenge. This was an amazing event in which local 
organizations came together to provide a premier stage of the 2011 tour. 
 
The City of Steamboat Springs would be happy to again donate the in-kind 
services and equipment that would be needed for such an event in the form of 
Police Officers for crowd control, Community Service Officers to deal with traffic 
flow, Public Works employees to provide road closures, as well as any needed 
signs, cones or fencing for the race. 
 
The City is very experienced in closing down Highway 40 and Yampa Street 
when necessary for large events like parades, carnivals and celebrations. We 
would be extremely excited to host this elite event again in our community, and 
would be committed to helping the event be successful for everyone involved. 
 
Sincerely, 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 
 
Bart Kounovsky Deb Hinsvark 
City Council President Interim City Manager 

2.5



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 3. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM: Deb Hinsvark, Interim City Manager (X240) 
 Joel Rae, Director of Public Safety (X113) 
 
DATE: October 30, 2012 

 
ITEM: Information, possible motion concerning the 

Police/Fire Facility location. 
 
NEXT STEP: More direction toward the location of a fire and police 

station. 
 
 
 _X_ DIRECTION 
 _X_ INFORMATION   
 ___ ORDINANCE  
 ___ MOTION 
 ___ RESOLUTION 
 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE: 
 
Council has reviewed two possible locations for the Central Fire Station and Police 
Headquarters and has asked for more options.   
 
II.   RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
If Council finds an alternative option presented tonight to be the desired location of 
either the Central Fire Station or the Police Headquarters, staff recommends 
direction in the form of a motion.  
 
III.   FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
 Proposed Expenditure:    Up to $10mm 
 Funding Source:     Unassigned Reserves 
 
 

3.1



 

 

 
 
 
IV.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Council has asked staff to offer additional options for siting the new Central Fire 
Station and the Police Headquarters.  Tonight, we will look at locations with direct 
access to Hwy 40.  Additionally, we will show Council the designed impact on 
parking at Stockbridge, if one or both stations were placed on that site. 
 
V.   LEGAL ISSUES: 
 
None. 
 
VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
 
None of which we are aware. 
 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 
Council may choose sites tonight, ask for more discussion of selected sites or ask 
for new sites to consider.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

3.2



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 4. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM: Tracy Barnett, MainStreet Steamboat Program 

Manager 
 

THROUGH: Julie Franklin, City Clerk (Ext. 248) 
  
DATE: October 30, 2012 

 
ITEM: A resolution approving the 2013 Operating Plan and 

Budget of the Downtown Steamboat Springs 
Business Improvement District and the 
reappointment of one member of the Board of 
Directors of the district. 

 
NEXT STEP: Approval of the resolution.  
 
 
 ___ DIRECTION 
 ___ INFORMATION   
 ___ ORDINANCE  
 ___ MOTION 
 _X_ RESOLUTION 
 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE: 
 
Approval of the annual operating plan and budget that must be submitted to the 
state for the Downtown BID.  Each year an operating plan and budget must be 
submitted to keep the BID active, even if there is no action or funds expended, as 
in the past several years since the BID was formed.  This year there will be some 
work done to determine if this is the time and there is the inclination of the 
constituents of the BID to go for a TABOR election in November 2013 to fund the 
existing BID.  A grant request has been submitted for funds to help build 
consensus among the constituents and to rebuild the BID board, however, if the 
grant does not come through, the funds needed will be raised independently. 
 
 

4.1



 

 

 
 
II.   RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Resolution to approve the 2013 Downtown Steamboat Springs Business 
Improvement District’s Operating Plan and Budget as submitted. 
 
III.   FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
 Proposed Expenditure: $15,000 (not a city expenditure) 

Funding Source: Grant funds if approved or private funding, if grant not 
approved 

 
IV.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
  
See I. above. 
 
V.   LEGAL ISSUES: 

 
This approval by the governing body is required each year by the State of Colorado 
for all existing BIDs and special districts within the state. 
 
VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
  
None 
 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
  
None 
 
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS  
 
Attachment 1 - Letter from Mary Carter, Law Offices of Spencer Fane and  
   Grimshaw, LLC 
 
 

4.2



Attachment 1

4.3



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE 2013 OPERATING PLAN AND 
BUDGET OF THE DOWNTOWN STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
BUSINESS IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT AND THE 
REAPPOINTMENT OF ONE MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE DISTRICT. 

 
WHEREAS,  The City of Steamboat Springs, by Ordinance No. 2112, effective 

June 29, 2007, approved the organization of the Downtown Steamboat Springs 
Business Improvement District (the "District"); and 
 

WHEREAS,   The District filed its proposed 2013 Operating Plan and Budget (the 
"2013 Operating Plan") with the City of Steamboat Springs on or before September 30, 
2012, as required by Section 31-25-1211, C.R.S.; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Steamboat Springs has reviewed the 2013 Operating 
Plan; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Steamboat Springs has found and does hereby find that 
the 2013 Operating Plan should be approved in the form submitted; and 

 
WHEREAS, The term of one member of the Board of Directors of the District 

will expire on December 31, 2012 and Council desires to reappoint said member to a 
term expiring December 31, 2015 as requested by the Board of Directors of the District. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO, THAT: 
 

Section 1. Operating Plan Approval.  The City of Steamboat Springs hereby 
approves the 2013 Operating Plan, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. 

 
Section 2. Appointment of Directors:   Gregory W. Koehler, a current member 

of the Board of Directors whose term expires December 31, 2012 is hereby reappointed 
to the Board to serve a term ending December 31, 2015. 
 

Section 3. Safety Clause.  The City Council hereby finds, determines, and 
declares that this Resolution is promulgated under the general police power of the City 
of Steamboat Springs, that it is promulgated for the health, safety, and welfare of the 
public and that this Resolution is necessary for the preservation of health and safety 
and for the protection of public convenience and welfare.  The City Council further 
determines that the Resolution bears a rational relation to the proper legislative object 
sought to be attained. 
 

4.4



Section 4. Severability.  If any clause, sentence, paragraph or part of this 
Resolution or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall for any 
reason be adjudged by a court of competent jurisdiction invalid, such judgment shall 
not affect application to other persons or circumstances. 
 

Section 4. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately. 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED, AND APPROVED this ______ day of ________________, 2012. 
 
      
 
       ___________________________ 
       Bart Kounovsky, President 

  Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
     
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 

4.5



4.6



4.7



4.8



4.9



4.10



4.11



4.12



4.13



4.14



4.15



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 5. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM:  Joel Rae, Director of Public Safety (113) 
    
 
THROUGH: Deb Hinsvark, Interim City Manager 
  
DATE:   October 30, 2012 
 
ITEM:   A resolution acknowledging appointments to the Routt 

County Combined Communications Center Advisory Board.  
 
NEXT STEP:   To appoint Fire Captain Michael Arce and Police Captain 

Jerry Stabile to serve as the City of Steamboat Springs 
representatives on the Routt County Communication 
Advisory Board for the remainder of 2012 and the year 
2013.  

 
 
              X     RESOLUTION 
 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE:   
 
To appoint Fire Captain Michael Arce and Police Captain Jerry Stabile to serve as 
the City representatives (one for Fire and one for Police) on the Routt County 
Communications Advisory Board for the remainder of 2012 and the year 2013. 

 
II. RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Staff recommends the appointment. 
 
III. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
A motion to appoint Fire Chief Ron Lindroth and Captain Joel Rae to this board 
was approved by City Council on January 3, 2012.  It is the desire of Public 
Safety Director Joel Rae and Fire Chief Mel Stewart to appoint Captain Arce and 
Captain Stabile.  Stabile and Arce also have a desire to serve in this capacity. 

5.1



 

 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION ACKNOWLEDGING APPOINTMENTS TO THE 
ROUTT COUNTY COMBINED COMMUNICATIONS CENTER 
ADVISORY BOARD. 

  
WHEREAS, the City of Steamboat Springs appoints members to fill vacancies 

that occur due to resignations and other reasons; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Routt County Communications Advisory Board Agreement 

states that the City may have two appointments (one as a Police Services 
representative and one as a Fire Rescue Representative) to Serve on the Routt County 
Combined Communications Center Advisory Board; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Director of Public Safety and Fire Chief recommend the 

appointments; and 
 
WHEREAS, the recommended Captains’ have a desire to fulfill the 

responsibilities that come with serving on the Routt County Combined 
Communications Center Advisory Board. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO, THAT:  
 

Section 1. The following people have been appointed to fill the positions on 
the Routt County Combined Communications Center Advisory Board from 
this date through the end of the year in 2013: 

 
Police Services Representative:   Captain Jerry Stabile 
Steamboat Springs Fire Rescue Representative: Captain Michael Arce 

  
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this      day of                       , 2012. 
 
 
 __________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 

5.2



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 6. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
_________________________________________________________________________   
                                                                                                     
FROM:   Anthony B. Lettunich, City Attorney (879-0100)  
 
THROUGH:  Debra Hinsvark, Interim City Manager (Ext. 240) 
 
DATE:    October 30, 2012 
 
ITEM:    A resolution reappointing Paul Sachs as the Steamboat 

 Springs Municipal Judge, reaffirming the appointment of 
 Jonathan Melvin as Deputy Municipal Judge and fixing 
 compensation for both positions for 2013 and 2014.  

 
NEXT STEP:  Approve the attached Resolution as presented. 
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
                 ___  ORDINANCE 
                   X   RESOLUTION 
                        MOTION    
                        DIRECTION 
                        INFORMATION 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
I.      REQUEST OR ISSUE:   
 
To reappoint Paul Sachs as the Municipal Judge for the City of Steamboat Springs for 
2013 and 2014, to reaffirm Jonathan Melvin as Deputy Municipal Judge and to fix 
compensation for both positions. 
 
II. RECOMMENDED MOTION: 
 
Motion to adopt the resolution reappointing Paul Sachs as the Steamboat Springs 
Municipal Judge, reaffirm the appointment of Jonathan Melvin as Deputy Municipal Judge 
and fix compensation for both positions as reflected in the resolution. 
 
III. FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
None 
 

6.1



 

 

 
 
 
 
IV.     BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
Paul Sachs has been serving as Municipal Judge since January 1, 1995, having been 
reappointed by City Council for consecutive terms since that time.  His current term will 
expire on December 31, 2012.  The Charter dictates that the Municipal Judge shall be 
appointed by City Council for a specified term of two (2) years.  Jonathan Melvin has been 
serving as Deputy Municipal Judge since September 1, 1987 whereby he was appointed 
for an indefinite period of time. 
 
The City’s Charter also provides that City Council shall fix the amount of salary or 
compensation for the Municipal Judge and Deputy Municipal Judge.  The Municipal Judge 
is compensated at $2,000 per month; and the Deputy Municipal Judge currently receives 
$100 per hour.  These amounts shall remain the same for the next two-year period. 
  
V. LEGAL ISSUES: 
 
None 
 
VI. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
To approve the resolution. 

6.2



Page 1 of 2 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING PAUL SACHS AS THE STEAMBOAT 
SPRINGS MUNICIPAL JUDGE, REAFFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT 
OF JONATHAN MELVIN AS DEPUTY MUNICIPAL JUDGE AND 
FIXING COMPENSATION FOR BOTH POSITIONS FOR 2013 AND 
2014. 

 
 WHEREAS,  under Section 6.2 of the Steamboat Springs Home Rule Charter, 
the Municipal Judge shall be appointed by City Council for a specified term of two (2) 
years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Paul Sachs has been serving as Municipal Judge since January 1, 
1995 where by resolution No. 2002-50, he was reappointed for a term of two (2) years; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, Jonathan Melvin has been serving at the pleasure of City Council 
since September 1, 1987, where by Resolution No. 87-27, he was appointed for an 
indefinite period of time as the Deputy Municipal Judge; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  the Charter provides that the Municipal Judge shall receive a fixed 
salary or compensation set by the City Council; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Charter also provides that the Deputy Municipal Judge shall 
serve at the pleasure of City Council and shall receive such compensation as Council 
may determine; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to reappoint Paul Sachs as Municipal Judge, 
reaffirm the appointment of Jonathan Melvin as Deputy Municipal Judge and fix the 
compensation for both positions for 2013 and 2014. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, THAT: 
 
 Section 1.  Paul Sachs is hereby reappointed as Municipal Judge, said two-year 
term to commence January 1, 2013. 
 
 Section 2. Jonathan Melvin’s previous appointment as Deputy Municipal Judge 
is hereby reaffirmed. 
 
 Section 3. For purposes of compensation, the Municipal Judge and Deputy 
Municipal Judge shall be deemed independent contractors.  The Municipal Judge shall 

6.3



Page 2 of 2 

be compensated at $2,000.00 per month for 2013 and 2014, and the Deputy Municipal 
Judge shall be compensated at the rate of $100.00 per hour. 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ____ of _______________, 2012. 

 
 
 

       ____________________________ 
       Bart Kounovsky, President 
       Steamboat Springs City Council 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 

6.4



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 7. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM: Kim Weber, Director of Financial Services (Ext. 250)  

 
THROUGH: Deb Hinsvark, Interim City Manager (Ext. 240)  
 
DATE: October 30th, 2012 

 
ITEM: An ordinance adopting the budget and setting 

appropriations for the City of Steamboat Springs, 
Colorado, for and during the period beginning the 
first day of January, 2013, and ending the thirty-first 
day of December, 2013.  

 
NEXT STEP: Approve at second reading on November 13th. 
 
 
  
 _X_ INFORMATION   
 _X_ ORDINANCE   
 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE: 

 
This communication form is to provide details of the few changes to the proposed 
2013 budget as directed by City Council on October 2, 2012. 
 
II.   RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 
Adoption at first and second reading. 
 
III.   FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
 Total budgeted revenues, all funds:  $ 40,360,153 
 Total budgeted expenditures, all funds:  $ 46,220,068 
  (Detail Attached) 
 
  

7.1



 

 

 
 
IV.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
This ordinance reflects the City’s 2013 Budget as presented to Council on October 
2, 2012 and the proposed changes that have occurred since the budget was 
presented.  The following are the changes from the original budget book that was 
presented: 

 
• The budget was adjusted to reflect Council’s vote for the Transit 

Department to remain at 2012 service levels in 2013.  This increased 
General Fund expenditures by $350,000. Additional revenue was also 
recognized to cover this cost. 

• General Fund expenditures increased by $25,000 for Chamber 
Tradeshow Marketing.  This was added to City Council’s community 
support budget. Additional revenue was also recognized to cover this 
cost. 

• City Council’s wages were reduced by 10% per the vote at the budget 
hearing.  

• The $150,000 expenditure for the Master Transportation Plan was 
removed from the Capital Projects Fund budget. 

• The $70,000 expenditure for the Howelsen Hill Multi-Season Recreation 
Plan was removed from the Capital Projects Fund budget. 

• The tennis center court resurfacing project was reduced by $52,600 for a 
total funding level of $16,000 in the 2013 budget. 

• There were some minimal changes to Recreation revenue, grant 
revenue, and corresponding expenditures based on updated information 
received. 

• The total amount of the expenditures and revenues increased by 
$1,151,112 because the Ski, Rodeo, Ice Arena, and Tennis Center Funds 
were removed from the General Fund summary and transfers were 
shown as requested by City Council.  The net effect is zero. 

 
V. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 
 
There was discussion at the October 2nd budget hearing regarding cuts that could 
be “damaging to the product”.  There are 2 items that I am aware of that were 
discussed as a Management Team that could be perceived as damaging the 
product.  These items are NOT in the budget as presented. 

1.  $12,000 for janitorial services at the Howelsen Hill Ice Arena.  As the 
budget is presented janitorial services at the arena would need to be 
handled by the Ice Arena staff. 

2. $86,000 for a Downtown Resource Officer (additional FTE).  We are 

7.2



 

 

currently covering this with a temporary position through the end of 
2012.  With the budget as presented in this ordinance it will eliminate 
this service of Wednesday-Saturday 5:00PM-3:00AM consistent police 
presence in the downtown area.   

 
VI.   LEGAL ISSUES: 
 
Annual budget for the City required by section 9.4 of the Home Rule Charter. 
 
VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
 
None noted. 
 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 
Appropriations may be revised, deleted or approved.   

 
If council wishes to add the two items identified in Additional Information, direction 
in the form of a motion is required. 
 
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - 2013 Budget summary by fund type 

7.3



MUNICIPAL

2013 GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 2013 ENTERPRISE FUNDS SERVICES

HOWELSEN HOWELSEN TENNIS CAPITAL COMMUNITY IRON REHDER FLEET
GENERAL SKI AREA RODEO ICE ARENA CENTER PROJECTS HOUSING HORSE WASTEWATER WATER AIRPORT GOLF BUILDING TOTAL SERVICES TOTAL

TOTAL REVENUES 24,381,931$    945,816$       200,900$       708,308$       189,577$       2,992,023$   -$                     842,993$      2,941,500$         2,091,697$       1,674,750$   1,699,125$   350,000$    39,018,620$    1,341,533$   40,360,153$     

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 24,714,217      945,816         200,900         708,308         189,577         4,087,383     80,000             842,993         4,367,613           3,996,721         1,737,528     3,059,301     361,092      45,291,449      928,619         46,220,068       

NET (332,286)$        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    (1,095,360)$  (80,000)$          -$                   (1,426,113)$        (1,905,024)$      (62,778)$       (1,360,176)$  (11,092)$     (6,272,829)$     412,914$      (5,859,915)$     

REVENUES

TAXES AND ASSESSMENTS 18,308,198$    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    1,167,400$   -$                     -$                   -$                         -$                      -$                   604,000$      -$                 20,079,598$    -$                   20,079,598$     

LICENSES AND PERMITS 34,100             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       -                     -                           -                         -                     -                     -                   34,100             -                     34,100              

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE 2,595,376        -                      -                      -                      -                      1,536,087     -                       -                     -                           -                         520,267         -                     -                   4,651,730        -                     4,651,730         

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,356,297        183,900         23,000           618,725         57,864           -                     -                       376,000         2,928,000           2,026,000         1,001,560     1,089,000     -                   9,660,346        1,341,533     11,001,879       

FINES AND FORFEITS 180,100           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       -                     -                           -                         -                     -                     -                   180,100           -                     180,100            

OTHER REVENUE 666,347           10,000           -                      -                      -                      75,000           -                       -                     13,500                 65,697              500                6,125             350,000      1,187,169        -                     1,187,169         

FINANCING -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       -                     -                           -                         -                     -                     -                   -                       -                     -                        

TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS -                       751,916         177,900         89,583           131,713         213,536         -                       466,993         -                           -                         152,423         -                     -                   1,984,064        -                     1,984,064         

OVERHEAD 1,241,513        -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       -                     -                           -                         -                     -                     -                   1,241,513        -                     1,241,513         

TOTAL REVENUES 24,381,931$    945,816$       200,900$       708,308$       189,577$       2,992,023$   -$                     842,993$      2,941,500$         2,091,697$       1,674,750$   1,699,125$   350,000$    39,018,620$    1,341,533$   40,360,153$     

EXPENDITURES

PERSONNEL COSTS 14,328,386$    350,492$       102,830$       274,572$       33,708$         -$                   -$                     213,636$      689,152$            259,450$          284,884$      462,017$      -$                 16,999,127$    288,318$      17,287,445$     

OPERATING EXPENSES 5,990,020        428,722         68,850           347,377         125,832         -                     -                       129,285         671,632               673,348            645,168         533,072         -                   9,613,306        501,101         10,114,407       

CONTINGENCY 224,276           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       -                     -                           -                         -                     -                     -                   224,276           -                     224,276            

EQUIPMENT 49,700             6,800              -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       -                     -                           -                         -                     19,728           -                   76,228             139,200         215,428            

CAPITAL OUTLAY -                       -                      -                      -                      -                      4,087,383     -                       -                     1,677,718           2,318,207         555,556         -                     350,000      8,988,864        -                     8,988,864         

COMMUNITY SUPPORT 1,350,816        -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     80,000             -                     -                           -                         -                     -                     -                   1,430,816        -                     1,430,816         

OVERHEAD 256,255           159,802         29,220           86,359           30,037           -                     -                       66,654           246,153               112,600            123,959         119,382         11,092         1,241,513        -                     1,241,513         

DEBT SERVICE 530,700           -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       433,418         1,082,958           633,116            127,961         1,925,102     -                   4,733,255        -                     4,733,255         

TRANSFERS 1,984,064        -                      -                      -                      -                      -                     -                       -                     -                           -                         -                     -                     -                   1,984,064        -                     1,984,064         

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 24,714,217$    945,816$       200,900$       708,308$       189,577$       4,087,383$   80,000$           842,993$      4,367,613$         3,996,721$       1,737,528$   3,059,301$   361,092$    45,291,449$    928,619$      46,220,068$     

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE/RESERVES 18,237,525$    -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    2,626,857$   1,037,184$      -$                   3,935,997$         3,930,189$       62,778$         2,672,526$   86,821$      32,589,877$    2,133,027$   34,722,904$     

ENDING FUND BALANCE/RESERVES 17,905,239      -                      -$                    -                      -$                    1,531,497     957,184           -                     2,509,884           2,025,165         -                     1,312,350     75,729         26,317,048      2,545,941     28,862,989$     

NET (332,286)$        -$                    -$                    -$                    -$                    (1,095,360)$  (80,000)$          -$                   (1,426,113)$        (1,905,024)$      (62,778)$       (1,360,176)$  (11,092)$     (6,272,829)$     412,914$      (5,859,915)$     

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS
2013 BUDGET SUMMARY BY FUND TYPE 2013 BUDGET SUMMARY BY FUND TYPE

2013 INTERNAL 
SERV FUND

Attachment 1

7.4



Budget 2013  1 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE BUDGET AND SETTING 
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE CITY OF STEAMBOAT 
SPRINGS, COLORADO, FOR AND DURING THE PERIOD 
BEGINNING THE FIRST DAY OF JANUARY, 2013, AND 
ENDING THE THIRTY-FIRST DAY OF DECEMBER, 2013. 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 9.4 of the Home Rule Charter of the 

City of Steamboat Springs, the City Manager has presented the City Council with a 
complete financial plan of all City funds and activities, and which covers all 
proposed expenditures of the City for the fiscal year beginning January 1, 2013, 
and ending December 31, 2013; and 

 
WHEREAS, said budget shows as definitely as possible each of the various 

funds for which appropriations are made in the budget, and the estimated amount 
of money carried in the budget for each such fund; and 

 
WHEREAS, said budget has been filed with the City Clerk and is available 

for public inspection; and 
 
WHEREAS, said budget serves a valid public purpose in that it sets a 

financial plan for the 2013 fiscal year; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of the public hearing on the proposed annual budget, 

stating the date, time, place and subject matter of said public hearing was given as 
required by Section 9.5 of the Home Rule Charter of the City of Steamboat Springs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 

 
Section 1.   APPROPRIATION: That out of current and probable revenues 

of the City of Steamboat Springs, Colorado, for and during the year beginning the 
first day of January 2013, there is hereby appropriated the following sums of 
money or that portion necessary for the purposes herein named: 
 
General Fund (including HH Ski Area, Rodeo, Ice Arena, & Tennis) $26,758,818 
 
Capital Projects Fund 4,087,383 
 
Fleet Services Fund 928,619 
 

7.5



Budget 2013  2 

Water Fund 3,996,721 
 
Utility Fund 4,367,613 
 
Airport Fund 1,737,528 
 
Golf Fund 3,059,301  
 
Rehder Building Fund 361,092 
 
Community Housing Fund 80,000 
 
Iron Horse Fund                                                                          842,993 
     
 
 Total Appropriations $46,220,068 
 
 

Section 2. That the budget herein summarized above, for the year 
stated, be approved and adopted as the budget of the City of Steamboat Springs, 
Colorado. 

 
Section 3. The budget herein approved and adopted shall be signed by 

the City Council President and attested to by the City Clerk and made a part of the 
public records of the City. 

 
Section 4. All ordinances heretofore passed and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, Colorado, are hereby repealed to the 
extent that said ordinances, or parts thereof, are in conflict herewith. 

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or provision of this 

Ordinance, or the application thereof, to any person or circumstance, shall to any 
extent, be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 
unconstitutional, the remaining sections, subsections, clauses, phrases and 
provisions of this Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance, shall remain in full force and shall in no way be affected, impaired or 
invalidated. 

 
Section 6. The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 

this Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health and safety, and that it serves a valid public purpose.  

 

7.6



Budget 2013  3 

Section 7. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon the 
expiration of five (5) days from and after its publication following final passage, as 
provided in Section 7.6(h) of the Steamboat Springs Home Rule Charter. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by the 
City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on the  
______ day of _______________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this _____ day of  
____________, 2010. 

 
 

 
 ______________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 

7.7



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 8. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM: Kim Weber, Finance Director (ext. 250)  

 
THROUGH: Deb Hinsvark, Interim City Manager (ext. 240) 
 
DATE: October 30, 2012 

 
ITEM: An ordinance approving the Fourth Supplemental 

Budget Appropriation of 2012. 
  
NEXT STEP: Approve ordinance at first and second readings. 
 
  
 _X_ INFORMATION   
 _X__ ORDINANCE  
 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE: 
  
This communication form is to approve the appropriation of funds for a Bridge Loan 
to Routt County Habitat for Humanity in the amount of $50,000. 
 
II.   RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
 
Approval at first and second readings. 
 
III.   FISCAL IMPACTS: 
 
 Revenues: 
 Community Housing Fund Reserves   $50,000 
 
 Expenditures: 
 Community Housing Fund – Bridge Loan    $50,000 
 
IV.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
This is a secured loan to Routt County Habitat for Humanity. Habitat for Humanity 

8.1



 

 

has grant contracts in the amount of $50,000 but will not receive reimbursement 
until after the Certificate of Occupancy is issued, so the City’s bridge loan will assist 
in the cash flow timing issues. The duplex is located at Lot 1 Habitat Honeysuckle 
Subdivision. The loan will be paid in two $25,000 payments with repayment to the 
City 5 business days from when they receive their grant payments. The payment 
will be no later than March 31, 2013.  

 
The loan agreement, promissory note, and deed of trust is attached. 
 
V.   LEGAL ISSUES: 
 
Supplemental Appropriations allowed per section 9.10 of the Home Rule Charter. 
 
VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
 
Routt County Habitat for Humanity is delinquent on Routt County property tax in 
the amount of $1,909.57 on property purchased by the City of Steamboat Springs.  
Staff intends to resolve this issue prior to closing on this loan. 
 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 
Appropriations may be revised, deleted or approved. 
 
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment 1 - Affordable Housing Bridge Loan Agreement 
Exhibit A -  Deed of Trust 
Exhibit B -  Secured Promissory Note 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8.2



 
 

Attachment 1 
 
 

AFFORDABLE HOUSING BRIDGE LOAN AGREEMENT 
 

This Affordable Housing Bridge Loan Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made this 
___ day of _______________, 2012 by and between Routt County Habitat for Humanity, 
Inc., (hereafter “Habitat”) a Colorado nonprofit corporation that meets the requirements 
of Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and the City of Steamboat Springs, a 
Colorado home rule municipal corporation (the “City”). 

 
WHEREAS, Habitat was formed for the purpose of providing affordable housing 

for low income families in Routt County, Colorado; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Habitat is engaged in the construction of a duplex located at Lot 1 
Habitat Honeysuckle Subdivision (the “Project”), upon completion of which Habitat will 
sell the two resulting dwelling units to low income families and provide purchase price 
financing to the purchasers; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Habitat intends to reimburse itself for its Project construction costs 
with grant funds Habitat expects to receive from Habitat for Humanity International, the 
receipt of which is contingent upon completion of the Project and issuance of a certificate 
of occupancy for the two dwelling units; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Habitat intends to finance its land acquisition costs with a loan 
Habitat expects to receive from the United State Department of Agriculture,  
 
 WHEREAS, Habitat needs additional funding in the amount of $50,000 to 
complete the Project and requests that the City provide a bridge loan to fund remaining 
construction costs; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Habitat will repay the bridge loan with the proceeds of its Habitat 
for Humanity International grant funding and will execute a deed of trust to the Routt 
County Public Trustee in favor of the City as security for repayment of the bridge loan.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the following mutual covenants and promises, 
the parties agree as follows: 
 
1.  Loan.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the City shall lend 
Habitat a sum not to exceed $50,000 (“City Loan”) to be paid in one or more payments 
upon request by Habitat.  Habitat shall repay the loan upon the earlier of a) 5 business 
days after Habitat’s receipt of its grant funding from Habitat for Humanity International 
or b) March 31, 2013.  Habitat shall use loan funds provided by the City for the sole 
purpose of completing construction of the Project.  Habitat acknowledges that the City 

8.3



Loan is bridge funding only; that Habitat bears any risk of its nonreceipt of grant funding; 
and that Habitat’s obligation to repay the City Loan is not contingent on Habitat’s receipt 
of its grant funding. 
 
2.  Promissory Note.  Habitat shall make, execute, and deliver to the City a promissory 
note in the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A” (“Promissory Note”) prior to the release 
of any funds to Habitat from the City Loan. 
 
3.  Security.  Habitat shall secure its obligation to repay the City Loan by executing a 
deed of trust in favor of the Routt County public trustee in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B” (“Deed of Trust”).  
 
4.  Warranty of Title.  Habitat shall prior to receipt of any City Loan funds provide the 
City with a copy of the title commitment commissioned in connection with Habitat’s sale 
of Lot 2 Habitat Honeysuckle Subdivision to the City (the “Title Commitment”).  Habitat 
warrants that Habitat owns and has the right to grant, convey and encumber Lot 1 Habitat 
Honeysuckle Subdivision (the “Property”) subject only to the encumbrances shown in the 
Title Commitment. 
 
5.  Subordination.  City shall execute such documents as may be necessary to 
subordinate the lien of its deed of trust to the lien securing Habitat’s United States 
Department of Agriculture loan. 
 
6.  Release.  City shall release the lien of its deed of trust upon Habitat’s repayment of 
the City Loan in accordance with the provisions of the Promissory Note. 
 
7.  Default.  In the event Habitat fails to comply with any provision of this Agreement 
then, not withstanding any contrary provision in the Promissory Note or Deed of Trust, 
the City shall have the right to declare a default and require immediate repayment of the 
City Loan.  Prior to exercising this right, City shall give Habitat written notice of the 
occurrence of an event of default.  Habitat shall have thirty days in which to cure such 
default.  If the default is not cured within the thirty day cure period, City shall have the 
right to declare a default and require immediate repayment of the City Loan by written 
notice to Habitat.  Repayment shall be due upon the date of such notice notwithstanding 
the provisions of Section 1 of this Agreement. 
 
8.  Notices.  Any notice required under this Agreement may be personally delivered or 
mailed in the United States mails, first class postage prepaid to the party to be served at 
the following addresses: 
 
Habitat: 
 
City:  Office of the City Manager 
  137 10th St. 
  P.O. Box 775088 
  Steamboat Springs, CO 80477 

8.4



 
Notices personally served shall deemed served on the date of delivery.  Notice mailed 
shall be deemed served the next business day following the date of mailing if mailed in 
the State of Colorado, otherwise on the date that is two business days following the date 
of mailing. 
 
9.  Integration/Amendment.  This Agreement, the Promissory Note, and the Deed of 
Trust constitute the entire agreement between the parties concerning the City Loan.  This 
Agreement shall not be amended except by a written document executed by both parties 
hereto. 
 
10.  Choice of Laws/Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado.  The parties agree that venue in any 
action to enforce or interpret this Agreement shall be in the District Court for the 
Fourteenth Judicial District of the State of Colorado. 
 
      CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Debra Hinsvark, Interim City Manager 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Julie Franklin, City Clerk 
 

HABITAT FOR HUMANITY OF ROUTT 
COUNTY, INC. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
 

8.5



Exhibit A 
 
 

DEED OF TRUST 
 

 This deed of trust is made this ____ day of ___________________, 2012, 
between the Routt County Habitat for Humanity, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit corporation 
(“Trustor”), whose address is ___________________________, Steamboat Springs, 
Colorado 80487 and the Public Trustee of Routt County, Colorado (“Trustee”) for the 
benefit of the City of Steamboat Springs, Colorado (“Beneficiary”) whose address is P.O. 
Box 773598, Steamboat Springs, Colorado 80487. 
 
 Trustor hereby grants and conveys to Trustee in trust, with full power of sale, the 
following described real property located in the Town of  Steamboat Springs, County of 
Routt, State of Colorado:  
 
 
 Lot 1 Habitat Honeysuckle Subdivision, Steamboat Springs, Colorado. 
 
Which has the address of _____________________________, Steamboat Springs, 
Colorado, together with all its appurtenances and the rents, issues, profits and proceeds 
there from (the “Property”). 
 
 This deed of trust is given to secure full and faithful performance by Trustor of all 
its obligations (the “Obligations”) owing to the Beneficiary under that certain Secured 
Promissory Note (the “Promissory Note”) dated as of ________________, 20___ in the 
principal amount of $______________ made by Trustor in favor of Beneficiary or under 
that certain Affordable Housing Bridge Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) dated 
_______________, 2012, between Trustor and Beneficiary and this deed of trust is given 
pursuant to the terms of the Loan Agreement.  All capitalized terms used herein not 
otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given them in the Loan Agreement. 
 
 Trustor further covenants and agrees as follows: 
 
1. Trustor covenants to Trustee and Beneficiary that Trustor owns and has the right 
to grant, convey and encumber the Property, warrants title to the same, subject to general 
real estate taxes for the current year, easements of record or in existence, and recorded 
declarations, restrictions, reservations and covenants, if any, as of this date and warrants 
that this deed of trust, when executed and delivered to Beneficiary, shall constitute a lien 
on the Property. 
 
2. Trustor shall pay all taxes, assessments and other charges, fine and impositions 
attributable to the Property which are or may become a lien having priority over this deed 
of trust when and as due and payable.  The foregoing notwithstanding , Trustor shall not 
be required to make payments otherwise required by this paragraph if Trustor, after 
written notice to Beneficiary, shall in good faith contest such obligation by, or defend 

8.6



enforcement of such obligation in, legal proceedings which operate to prevent the 
enforcement of the obligation or forfeiture of the Property or any part thereof. 
 
3. Trustor shall, at all times, maintain the following insurance on the Property: 
_______________________________.  All such insurance is referred to hereinafter as 
the “Property Insurance”. 
 
 The insurance carrier providing the Property Insurance shall be qualified to write 
such Property Insurance in Colorado and shall be chosen by Trustor subject to 
Beneficiary’s right to reject the chosen carrier for reasonable cause.  All insurance 
policies and renewals shall include a standard mortgage clause in favor of Beneficiary, 
and shall provide that the insurance carrier shall notify Beneficiary in writing at least 
thirty (30) days prior to cancellation, termination or any material change of coverage.  
Insurance policies or certificates shall be delivered to Beneficiary at the same time as the 
delivery of this deed of trust to Beneficiary.  Beneficiary shall have the right to hold the 
policies and any renewals thereof. 
 
 In the event of loss, Trustor shall give prompt notice to the insurance carrier and 
Beneficiary.  Beneficiary may make proof of loss if not promptly made by Trustor. 
 
 Insurance proceeds shall be applied to restoration or repair of the Property 
damaged, provided such restoration or repair is economically feasible and the security of 
this deed of trust is not thereby impaired.  If such restoration or repair is not economically   
feasible or if the security of this deed of trust would be impaired, the insurance proceeds 
shall be applied to satisfy the Obligations which are secured by this deed of trust with the 
excess, if any, paid to Trustor. 
 
 If the Property is abandoned by Trustor, or if Trustor fails to respond to 
Beneficiary within thirty (30) days from the date notice is given in accordance with 
paragraph 11 hereof by Beneficiary to Trustor that the insurance carrier offers to settle a 
claim for insurance benefits, Beneficiary is authorized to collect and apply the insurance 
proceeds, at the Beneficiary’s option, either to restoration or repair of the Property or to 
the Obligations. 
 
 Nothwithstanding anything else herein to the contrary, if under paragraph 13 the 
Property is acquired by Beneficiary, all right, title and interest of Trustor in and to any 
insurance policies and in and to the proceeds thereof resulting from damage to the 
Property prior to the sale or acquisition shall pass to Beneficiary to the extent of the 
Obligations outstanding immediately prior to such sale or acquisition. 
 
4. Trustor shall keep the Property in good repaid and shall not commit wasted or 
permit impairment or deterioration of the Property.  Trustor shall perform all of Trustor’s 
obligations under any declarations, covenants, by-laws, rules or other documents 
governing the use, ownership or occupancy of the Property. 
 

8.7



5. If Trustor fails to perform the covenants and agreements contained in this deed of 
trust, the Promissory Note or the Loan Agreement, or if a default occurs with respect to 
an obligation which is secured by a lien prior to the lien of this deed of trust , or if any 
action or proceeding is commenced which, if decided, would adversely affect 
Beneficiary’s interest in the Property, then Beneficiary, at Beneficiary’s option, with 
notice to Trustor if required by law, may make such appearances, disburse such sums and 
take such action as Beneficiary deems reasonably necessary to protect Beneficiary’s 
interest in the Property, including, without limitation, disbursement of attorney fees and 
entry on the Property to make repairs.  Trustor hereby assigns to Beneficiary any right 
Trustor may have by reason of any prior encumbrance on the Property or by law or 
otherwise to cure any default under said prior encumbrance. 
 
Any amounts disbursed by Beneficiary pursuant to this paragraph 5, together with 
interest thereon at the maximum legal rate from the date of disbursement by Beneficiary  
until paid, shall become additional Obligations of Trustor secured by this deed of trust 
and shall be immediately due and payable to Beneficiary upon demand.  In the event such 
sums are not paid to Beneficiary by Trustor within five (5) days after demand by 
Beneficiary, Beneficiary may commence suit to collect such sums.  Nothing contained in 
this paragraph 5 shall require Beneficiary to incur any expense or take any action 
hereunder. 
 
6. Beneficiary may make or cause to be made reasonable entries upon and inspection 
of the Property, provided that Beneficiary shall give Trustor notice prior to any such 
inspection specifying reasonable cause therefore related to Beneficiary’s interest in the 
Property. 
 
7. The proceeds or any award or claim for damages, direct or consequential, in 
connection with any condemnation or other taking of the Property, or any part thereof, or 
for conveyance in lieu of condemnation are hereby assigned and shall be paid to 
Beneficiary as herein provided. 
 
In the event of a total taking of the Property, the proceeds shall be applied to the 
Obligations secured by this deed of trust with the excess, if any, paid to Trustor.  In the 
event of a partial taking of the Property, the proceeds shall be divided between payment 
of the Obligations, if any then due, and payment to Trustor, in the same ratio as the 
amount of the Obligations of Trustor bears to Trustor’s equity in the Property 
immediately prior to the date of taking.  Trustor’s equity means the fair market value of 
the Property less the Obligations. 
 
If the Property is abandoned by Trustor, or if Trustor fails to respond to Beneficiary 
within thirty (30) days from the date notice is given in accordance with paragraph 11 
hereof by Beneficiary to Trustor that the condemnor offers to make an award or settle a 
claim for damages, Beneficiary is authorized to collect and apply the proceeds, at the 
Beneficiary’s option, either to restoration or repair of the Property or to the Obligations. 
 

8.8



8. Any forbearance by Beneficiary in exercising any right or remedy hereunder, or 
otherwise afforded by law, shall not be a waiver or preclude the subsequent exercise of 
any such right or remedy. 
 
9. Each remedy provided in the Promissory Note, the Loan Agreement or in this 
deed of trust is distinct from and cumulative to all other rights or remedies under the 
Promissory Note, the Loan Agreement and this deed of trust or afforded by law or equity 
and may be exercised concurrently independently or successively. 
 
10. The covenants and agreements herein contained shall bind, and the rights 
hereunder shall inure to, the respective successor and assigns of Trustor and Beneficiary.  
All covenants and agreements of the Trustor shall be joint and several. 
 
11. Except for any notice required by law to be given in another manner, (a) any 
notice to Trustor provided for in this deed of trust shall be in writing and shall be given 
and effective upon (1) delivery to Trustor or (2) mailing such notice by certified mail, 
return receipt requested, addressed to Trustor at Trustor’s address stated herein or at such 
other address as Trustor may designate by notice to Beneficiary as provided herein, and 
(b) any notice to Beneficiary shall be in writing and shall be given and effective upon (1) 
delivery to Beneficiary or (2) mailing such notice by certified mail, return receipt 
requested, to Beneficiary’s address stated here or to such other address as Beneficiary 
may designate by notice to Trustor as provided herein.  Any notice provided for in this 
deed of trust shall be deemed to have been given to Trustor or Beneficiary when given in 
any manner designated herein. 
 
12. The Promissory Note, the Loan Agreement, and this deed of trust shall be 
governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Colorado.  In the 
event that any provision or clause in this deed of trust or the Promissory Note or the Loan 
Agreement conflicts with such law, such conflict shall not affect other provisions of this 
deed of trust, the Promissory Note or the Loan Agreement which can be given effect 
without the  conflicting provisions and to this end the provisions of this deed of trust, the 
Promissory Note and the Loan Agreement are declared to be severable. 
 
13. Except as provided in paragraph 14, upon Trustor’s breach of any covenant or 
agreement of Trustor in this deed of trust, in the Promissory Note or in the Loan 
Agreement, or upon any default in a prior lien upon the Property, at Beneficiary’s option 
all of the Obligations of Trustor shall be immediately due and payable (hereinafter 
“Acceleration”).  To exercise this option Beneficiary may invoke the power of sale and 
any other remedies permitted by law.  Beneficiary shall be entitled to collect all 
reasonable costs and expenses incurred in pursuing the remedies provided in this deed of 
trust, including, without limitation, all attorney fees actually incurred. 
 
If Beneficiary invokes the power of sale, Beneficiary shall give written notice to Trustee 
of such election.  Trustee shall give such notice to Trustor of Trustor’s rights as is 
provided by law.  Trustee shall record a copy of such notice as required by law.  Trustee 
shall advertise the time and place of the sale of the Property, for not less than four weeks 

8.9



in a newspaper of general circulation in the county in which the Property is situated, and 
shall mail copies of such notice of sale to Trustor and other persons as prescribed by law.  
After the lapses of such time as may be required by law, Trustee, without demand on 
Trustor shall sell the Property at public auction to the highest bidder for cash at the time 
and place (which may be on the Property or any part thereof as permitted by law) in one 
or more parcels as the Trustee may think best and in such order as the Trustee may 
determine.  Beneficiary or Beneficiary’s designee may purchase the Property at any sale.  
It shall not be obligatory upon the purchaser at any such sale to see to the application of 
the purchase of money. 
 
Trustee shall apply the proceeds of the sale in the following order: (2) to all reasonable 
costs and expenses of the sale, including, without limitation, reasonable Trustee’s and 
attorney’s fees and costs of title evidence; (b) to all Obligations secured by this deed of 
trust; and (c) the excess, if any, to the person or persons legally entitled thereto. 
 
14. Whenever foreclosure is commenced for nonpayment of any sums due hereunder, 
the owner of the Property or parties liable hereon shall be entitled to cure said defaults by 
paying all delinquent amounts as of the date of cure, costs, expenses, late charges, 
attorney’s fees and other fees all in the manner provided by law.  Upon such payment and 
the performance of all other Obligations owing hereunder, this deed of trust and the 
Obligations shall remain in full force and effect as though no Acceleration had occurred 
and the foreclosure proceedings shall be discontinued. 
 
15. As additional security hereunder, Trustor hereby assigns to Beneficiary the rents, 
issues and profits for the Property; however, Trustor shall, prior to Acceleration under 
paragraph 13 hereof or abandonment of the Property, have the right to collect and retain 
such rents, issues and profits as they become due and payable. 
 
Beneficiary or the holder of the Trustee’s certificate of purchase shall be entitled to a 
receiver for the Property after Acceleration under paragraph 13 hereof, and shall also be 
so entitled during the time covered by foreclosure proceedings and the period of 
redemption, if any; and shall be entitled thereto as a matter of right without regard to the 
solvency or insolvency of the Trustor or of the then owner of the Property, and without 
regard to the value thereof.  Such receiver may be appointed by any court of competent 
jurisdiction on ex parte application and without notice, notice being hereby expressly 
waived. 
 
Upon Acceleration pursuant to paragraph 13, abandonment of the Property as specified in 
the Promissory Note or the Loan Agreement, Beneficiary, in person, by agent or by 
judicially-appointed receiver, shall be entitled to enter upon, take possession of and 
manage the Property and to collect the rents of the Property including those past due.  All 
rents collected by Beneficiary or the receiver shall by applied first to payment of the costs 
of preservation and management of the Property, second , to payments due upon prior 
liens, and then to the Obligations.  Beneficiary and the receiver shall be liable to account 
only for those rents actually received by Beneficiary or the receiver as the case may be. 
 

8.10



16. Upon full and faithful performance and satisfaction of all Obligations, Beneficiary 
shall cause Trustee to release this deed of trust and shall produce for Trustee the 
Promissory Note and the Loan Agreement.  Trustor shall pay all costs of recordation and 
shall pay the statutory Trustee’s fees.  If the Beneficiary shall not produce the Promissory 
Note or the Loan Agreement, then Beneficiary, upon notice in accordance with paragraph 
11 from Trustor to Beneficiary shall obtain at Beneficiary’s expense, and file, any lost 
instrument bond required by the Trustee or pay the cost thereof to effect the release of 
this deed of trust. 
 
17. Trustor hereby waives all right of homestead and any other exemption in the 
Property under state or federal law presently existing or hereafter enacted. 

 
 

 
BY: ______________________________________ 
TITLE: ___________________________________ 
 
 

 ATTEST:  ___________________________________ 
 
 TITLE: __________________________________ 
 
 
 
 STATE OF COLORADO                         ) 
                                                                               )  ss. 
 COUNTY OF ROUTT                             ) 
                                                                               
 
 The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _______ day of 
___________________, 20__, by ___________________________________ as the 
__________________________ and ________________________________ as the 
___________________________ of _______________________________________. 
 
Witness by hand and official seal. 
 
My commission expires: 
 
 
       __________________________ 
       Notary Public 

8.11



Exhibit B 
 
 

SECURED PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
 

U.S. $50,000.00    Steamboat Springs, Colorado 
      _________________, 20__ 
 
For value received, the Routt County Habitat for Humanity, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit 
corporation (the “Borrower”) promises to pay to the City of Steamboat Springs, Colorado 
(the “Note Holder”), or to order the principal sum of Fifty Thousand and No One 
Hundredths ($50,000.00). The principal sum shall bear no interest if paid when due.  Any 
amount not paid when due shall thereafter bear interest at the rate of one percent per 
month until paid in full.  Unless due earlier under the terms of an Affordable Housing 
Bridge Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) dated as of _________, 2012, between 
Borrower and Note Holder, all sums due hereunder shall be due and payable on March 
13, 2013.  Payments made under this Promissory Note shall first be applied to any 
interest due and then to principal. 
 
If any payment required by this Note is not paid when due, or if any default under any 
Deed of Trust or other security instrument securing this Note occurs, the entire principal 
amount outstanding and accrued interest thereon shall at once become due and payable at 
the option of the Note Holder (“Acceleration”).  The Note Holder shall be entitled to 
collect all reasonable costs and expenses of collection and legal action, including, but not 
limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees. 
 
Borrower may prepay the principal amount outstanding under this Note, in whole or in 
part, at any time without penalty. 
 
Borrower hereby waives presentment, notice of dishonor and protest, and hereby agrees 
to any extensions of time of payment before, at, or after maturity. 
 
Any notice to Borrower provided for in this Note shall be in writing and shall be given 
and be effective upon (1) delivery to Borrower or (2) mailing such notice by first-class 
U.S. mail, addressed to Borrower at Borrower’s address for notice set forth in the Loan 
Agreement, or to such other address as Borrower may designate by written notice to the 
Note Holder at the address for the Fund Holder set forth in the Loan Agreement. 
 
The indebtedness evidenced by this Note is or may be secured by a Deed of Trust dated 
______________, 20__, as well as other security and, until released said Deed of Trust 
and the other security instruments contain additional rights of the Note Holder.  Such 
rights or other provisions of the Loan Agreement may cause Acceleration of the 
indebtedness evidenced by this Note.  Reference is made to said Deed of Trust, the other 
security instruments and the Loan Agreement for additional terms.  Said Deed of Trust 
grants rights in the property indentified as: 

8.12



 
Lot 1 Habitat Honeysuckle Subdivision 
 
 
   ROUTT COUNTY HABITAT FOR HUMANITY, 
   A Colorado nonprofit corporation 
 
 
   BY: _______________________________________ 
 
   TITLE: ____________________________________ 

8.13



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING THE FOURTH SUPPLEMENTAL 
BUDGET APPROPRIATION OF 2012.  
 
WHEREAS, Routt County Habitat for Humanity has requested a Bridge 

Loan in the amount of $50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Housing Fund has funds available for the 

requested loan; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes that such an appropriation is 

important to the economic health and welfare of the community. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 

 
Section 1. Supplemental Appropriation. That pursuant to Section 9.10 

(a) of the City of Steamboat Springs Home Rule Charter, the City Council hereby 
appropriates the following sums of money or that portion necessary for the 
purposes herein named: 

 
Community Housing Fund Habitat for Humanity Bridge Loan        $ 50,000 

 
Section 2. All ordinances heretofore passed and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, Colorado, are hereby repealed to the 
extent that said ordinances, or parts thereof, are in conflict herewith. 
 

Section 3. If any section, subsection, clause, phrase or provision of this 
Ordinance, or the application thereof, to any person or circumstance, shall to any 
extent, be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or 
unconstitutional, the remaining sections, subsections, clauses, phrases and 
provisions of this Ordinance, or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance, shall remain in full force and shall in no way be affected, impaired or 
invalidated. 
 

Section 4. The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
this Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health and safety. 

 

8.14



Section 5. This Ordinance shall take effect immediately upon the 
expiration of five (5) days from and after its publication following final passage, 
as provided in Section 7.6(h) of the Steamboat Springs Home Rule Charter. 
 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by 
the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on 
the _____ day of ____________, 2012. 
 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
 Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this ______ day of  
_____________, 2012. 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Bart Kounovsky, President 
ATTEST: Steamboat Springs City Council 
 
__________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 

8.15



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 9. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
                                                                                                                        
_____________________________________________________________ 
 
FROM:  Bob Keenan, Senior Planner (Ext. 229) 
   Tyler Gibbs, AIA, Director of Planning and Community Development 
   (Ext. 244) 
 
THROUGH:  Deb Hinsvark, Interim City Manager (Ext. 240) 

 
DATE:  October 30, 2012 
 
ITEM:   Second reading of an ordinance vacating utility easements located in 

Airport Meadows, Filing 1, Lots 1 and 2, and providing an effective 
date and setting a hearing date. 

 
NEXT STEP:  The approval of an ordinance requires two readings to City Council.  

This is the first reading.  The second reading is scheduled for October 
30, 2012. 

______________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                       
  _X_ ORDINANCE 
                   ___ RESOLUTION 
  _X_ MOTION 
                   ___  DIRECTION 
                   ___ INFORMATION 
_____________________________________________________________ 
                                                                                                                            
PROJECT NAME: Easement Vacation; Airport Meadows, Filing 1, Lots 1 and 2. 
 
PETITION:   A request to vacate a variety of unnecessary utility easements as 

described and depicted in Exhibit A on lots 1 and 2 of Airport 
Meadows Filing 1.   

 
LOCATION:   Airport Meadows, Filing 1, Lots 1 and 2 (Across from Elk River Farm 

and Feed). 
 
APPLICANT: Western Structures, LLC, PO Box 772658, Steamboat Springs, CO.  
   80477 C/O Matt Wagar,  Moon  Hill  Design,  Inc, PO Box 774049,  
   Steamboat Springs, CO 80477. 
 

9.1



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
October 16, 2012 
Airport Meadows, F1, Lots 1 and 2 Easement Vacation 
      

 

 
 
 
 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 
 
1. Background Information:  
 
The applicant is requesting to vacate the following utility easements.  Please see the 
attached exhibit depicting the request.   

Lot 1:  All of the west and north property line utility easements and half (7.5’) of 
the south property line easement.  
Lot 2:  All of the west, north and south easements.   

 
The applicant has provided sign-offs from all of the applicable agencies agreeing to vacate 
these easements.  Easements are required to be vacated by an ordinance as well as 
through recordation of a Final Plat.   
 
2. Recommended Motion: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Ordinance vacating the unnecessary utility easements 
within Lots 1 and 2 of Airport Meadows, Filing 1. 
 
3. Project Location Map 
 

9.2



CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
October 16, 2012 
Airport Meadows, F1, Lots 1 and 2 Easement Vacation 
      

 

 
 
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS 
 

Attachment 1 -   Utility Easement Vacation Depicted  

9.3



Attachment 1

9.4



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE VACATING UTILITY EASEMENTS LOCATED 
IN AIRPORT MEADOWS, FILING 1, LOTS 1 AND 2, AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE AND SETTING A HEARING 
DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Chapter 20, Art. I, Div. 3 of the 

Steamboat Springs Revised Municipal Code, the owners of Airport Meadows, 
Subdivision, Filing 1, Lots 1 and 2 wish to vacate utility easements within Lots 1 
and 2 of Airport Meadows Subdivision, Filing 1 (the “Property”) as outlined in the 
legal description; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Utility providers have reviewed the request and 

determined that the subject public easements are not a necessary part of the 
District’s public utility system; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that vacating the subject utility 

easements will promote the public interest by clarifying the easement 
boundaries. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 

 
Section 1.   That the two utility easements within Lots 1 and 2, Airport 

Meadows Subdivision, Filing 1 as described in Exhibit A are hereby vacated. 
 
 Section 2.   That pursuant to Section 7-11 of the Charter of the City of 
Steamboat Springs, Colorado, the second publication of this ordinance may be by 
reference, utilizing the ordinance title. 
 
 Section 3.   If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of 
this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 4.   The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
this ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health, and safety. 
 

Section 5.   This Ordinance shall take effect upon the later of the 
expiration of thirty (30) days from and after its publication following final 

9.5



passage, as provided in Section 13.6 of the Steamboat Springs Home Rule 
Charter. 
 

Section 6.   A public hearing on this ordinance shall be held on October 
16, 2012 at 5:00 P.M. in the Citizens Hall meeting room, Centennial Hall, 
Steamboat Springs, Colorado. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by 
the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on 
the _____ day of ________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
            
      ____________________________ 
      Bart Kounovsky, President 
      Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this ___ day of 
_____________, 2012. 
 
 
             
      ____________________________ 
      Bart Kounovsky, President 
      Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

9.6



Ph: 970-871-6772 · Fax: 970-879-8023 · P.O. Box 775966 · Steamboat Springs, Colorado 80477 

A legal description of  utility easements to be vacated located within Lot 1 and Lot 2, Airport 
Meadows Filing No. 1, located in the NW ¼ NW ¼ Section 6 Township 6 North, Range 84 West of 

the 6th P.M., Steamboat Springs, Routt County, Colorado 

A legal description of  utility easements to be vacated located within Lot 1 and Lot 2, Airport Meadows 
Filing No. 1, located in the NW ¼ NW ¼ Section 6 Township 6 North, Range 84 West of the 6th P.M., 
Steamboat Springs, Routt County, Colorado; more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at the Southeast corner of Lot 1, Airport Meadows Filing No. 1; thence North 79°48’27” 
West 21.08 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence South 79°21’00” West, 210.18 feet to a point of 
intersection with the westerly line of Lot 1; thence North 08°16’00” West along the westerly lot line of 
Lot 1 and Lot 2, Airport Meadows Filing No. 1, 235.14 feet to the northwest corner of Lot 2; thence 
North 81°44’’00” East,  210.00 feet along the north line of the said Lot 2;  thence South 08°16’00” East, 
10.00 feet; thence South 81°44’00 West, 195.00 feet; thence South 08°16’00” East, 90.00 feet; thence 
North 81°44’00” East, 195.00 feet; thence South 08°16’00” East, 20.00 feet; thence South 81°44’00” 
West, 195.00 feet; thence South 08°16’00” East, 107.01 feet thence North 79°21’00” East, 195.17 feet; 
thence South 08°16’00” East, 7.50 feet to the point of beginning, said easement contains 10,837 square 
feet more or less. 

Basis of Bearings:  Airport Meadows Filing No. 1 plat bearing of North 08°16’00” West along the west 
line of Lots 1 through Lot 6, per the final plat as recorded at Routt County records at File #7604 of Routt 
County Clerk and Recorder. 

Legal description prepared by Walter N. Magill, Colorado Professional Land Surveyor, 38024 for and on 
behalf of Four Points Surveying and Engineering. 

Exhibit A

9.7



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 10. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
 
 
FROM: Mel Stewart, Fire Chief (879-7170) 

 
THROUGH: Joel Rae, Public Safety Director (Ext. 113) 
 Dan Foote, Staff Attorney (Ext. 223) 
 
DATE: October 30, 2012 

 
ITEM: Second reading of an ordinance authorizing the City 

Manager to impose and lift fire restrictions; repealing 
all conflicting ordinances; and providing an effective 
date. 

 
NEXT STEP: City Council to review proposed ordinance.  
 
  
                 _ _ DIRECTION 
                 ___ INFORMATION   
                 _X_ ORDINANCE   
                 ___ MOTION 
                 ___ RESOLUTION 
_________________________________________________________________ 
 
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE:   
 
Provide authority to City Manager to impose and rescind fire restrictions in the 
future.  
 
II.   RECOMMENDED ACTION:   
 
Requesting that the City Council approve and enact an ordinance to give the City 
Manager the authority to impose and rescind fire restrictions. 
 
III.   FISCAL IMPACTS:  
 
No impacts for this step of the process. 
 
IV.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 

10.1



 

 

Currently, in order to impose or rescind fire restrictions, an ordinance must be 
brought before the City Council.  By allowing the City Manager this authority, the 
City can respond in a more timely manner to address changing conditions.  This 
will allow the City of Steamboat Springs to more closely follow the direction of 
other agencies and authorities in our region.  
 
V.   LEGAL ISSUES:  
 
None at this time 
 
VI.  CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES:  
 
None at this time 
 
VII. SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES:   
 
Continue to require fire restrictions to be implemented and rescinded by City 
Council through a standard or emergency ordinance. 
 
Approve new ordinance allowing the City Manager to impose and rescind fire 
restrictions. 

10.2



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
IMPOSE AND LIFT FIRE RESTRICTIONS; REPEALING ALL 
CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Steamboat Springs is located in the jurisdiction of 

the Northwest Colorado Fire Management Unit, which has established criteria 
governing the imposition and lifting of fire restrictions by its constituent 
members; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City currently imposes and lifts fire restrictions by 

ordinance, which is a process that may unnecessarily delay the imposition or 
restriction of fire restrictions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the criteria established by the Northwest Colorado Fire 

Management Unit are sufficiently objective in nature to provide adequate 
guidance for City administrative officials to impose or lift fire restrictions without 
seeking Council approval of their actions by ordinance and it is therefore 
appropriate for the City Council to delegate to the City Manager the authority to 
impose or lift fire restrictions; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs hereby 

determines that it is necessary to the preservation of the health, safety, and 
welfare of the citizens of the City to delegate to the City Manager the authority to 
impose or lift fire restrictions in accordance with the criteria established by the 
Northwest Colorado Fire Management Unit. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 

 
 Section 1.   Article III, Chapter 2 of the City of Steamboat Springs 
Revised Municipal Code is hereby amended by the addition of the following 
Section 26-174: 
 
“Section 26-174.  Fire Restrictions. 
 
The City Manager is authorized to impose and/or lift fire restrictions within the 
corporate limits of the City of Steamboat Springs in accordance with the criteria 
established by the Northwest Colorado Fire Management Unit.  The City Manager 
shall consult with the Director of Public Safety Services and/or the City Fire Chief 

10.3



in determining whether the criteria support the imposition or lifting of fire 
restrictions.  The City Manager shall reduce to writing, post, and publish any 
decision to impose, lift, or modify fire restrictions pursuant to this section.  
Publication shall be in the same manner provided for the posting and publication 
of ordinances.  Fire restrictions imposed by the City Manager and posted and 
published pursuant to this section shall be a “rule or regulation authorized by 
ordinance” for purposes of the imposition of penalties for violations pursuant to 
Section 1-15(a)(1) of this code.”  
 
 Section 2.   All ordinances heretofore passed and adopted by the City 
Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, Colorado, are hereby repealed to the 
extent that said ordinances, or parts thereof, are in conflict herewith.   
 
 Section 3.   This ordinance shall take effect five (5) days after 
publication following final passage pursuant to Section 7.6(h) of the City of 
Steamboat Springs Home Rule Charter.   
 
 Section 4.   The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
this emergency ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the 
public peace, health, and safety.  
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by 
the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on 
the _____ day of ________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
            
            
      __________________________ 
      Bart Kounovsky, President 
      Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
  
 
 
 
 

10.4



 
 
 
FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this ___ day of _____________, 
2012. 
 
 
       __________________________ 
      Bart Kounovsky, President 
      Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

10.5



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 11. 
 

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
                                                                                                                   
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
FROM:  Jason K. Peasley, AICP, City Planner (Ext. 229)   

 Tyler Gibbs, AIA, Dir. of Planning & Community Development (Ext. 
244)  

 
THROUGH:  Deb Hinsvark, Interim City Manager (Ext. 240) 
 

DATE: October 30, 2012 
 
ITEM:   Second reading of an ordinance amending the International 

Building Code 2006 Edition in Chapter 5, Article 1, Section 5-3: 
International Building Code-Amendments and Deletions to add an 
exception to allow a boarding house to comply with the 
International Residential Code. 

 
NEXT STEP:  If approved on second reading, the building code will be amended to 

include the proposed exception. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
  
                     X_ ORDINANCE 
                         RESOLUTION 
                     X_ MOTION  
                          DIRECTION 
                         INFORMATION 
________________________________________________________________________  
 
PROJECT NAME: Ordinance amending IBC to allow B&B’s to be reviewed under IRC. 
 
PETITION:    An ordinance amending the International Building Code 2006 Edition 

in Chapter 5, Article 1, Section 5-3: International Building Code – 
Amendments and Deletions to add an exception to allow a boarding 
house to comply with the International Residential Code. 

 
APPLICANT:  City of Steamboat Springs, Department of Planning and Community 

Development, c/o Jason K. Peasley, AICP, City Planner, Centennial 
Hall, 124 10th Street, PO Box 775088, Steamboat Springs, CO  
80477, 970-879-2060. 

 

11.1



CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  CCOOMMMMUUNNIICCAATTIIOONN  FFOORRMM  
Ordinance amending IBC to allow B&B’s to be reviewed under IRC 
October 30, 2012 
 

 

 
 
 

I. BACKGROUND 

The current International Building Code requires Bed and Breakfast uses to install fire 
sprinkler systems.   Similar uses such as Vacation Home Rentals do not have to install 
fire sprinkler systems.  Staff is proposing this change to the IBC to allow for Bed and 
Breakfasts to operate without fire sprinkler systems.  This change will treat VHRs and 
Bed and Breakfasts equally with respect to fire sprinkler requirements. 

 
The Regional Building Department Oversight Committee reviewed the proposed change 
on August 29, 2012 and recommended that it move forward for adoption by the City 
Council.   

II. PUBLIC COMMENT 

No public comment was received on this application. 

III. NEW INFORMATION  

No new information at this time. 

IV. RECOMMENDED MOTION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed ordinance. 

 

 

11.2



CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE INTERNATIONAL 
BUILDING CODE 2006 EDITION IN CHAPTER 5, ARTICLE 1, 
SECTION 5-3: INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE-
AMENDMENTS AND DELETIONS TO ADD AN EXCEPTION TO 
ALLOW A BOARDING HOUSE TO COMPLY WITH THE 
INTERNATIONAL RESIDENTIAL CODE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Steamboat Springs has previously adopted the 

2006 Editions of the International Family of Codes mentioned above and all 
related technical codes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Steamboat Springs finds it necessary to include a 

boarding house definition to the description of R-3 occupancies; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Routt County Regional Building Department Oversight 

Committee has reviewed and recommended this change; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Building Official has reviewed and recommended this 

change. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS, COLORADO: 
 
Section 1.   Chapter 5, Article 1, Section 5-3 shall be amended to include 

the following addition: 
 
International Building Code Section 310.1 Residential Group R, 
R-3 is amended to add the following exception: 
 
EXCEPTION: Boarding Houses containing not more than four (4) 
sleeping units for rent or hire that are also occupied as the 
residence of the proprietor may comply with the International 
Residential Code.  

 
 Section 2.   That pursuant to Section 7-11 of the Charter of the City of 
Steamboat Springs, Colorado, the second publication of this ordinance may be by 
reference, utilizing the ordinance title. 
 

11.3



 Section 3.   If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of 
this Ordinance is for any reason held to be invalid, such decision shall not affect 
the validity of the remaining portion of this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 4.   The City Council hereby finds, determines and declares that 
this ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, 
health, and safety. 
 

Section 5.   This Ordinance shall take effect upon the later of the 
expiration of five (5) days from and after its publication following final passage, 
as provided in Section 7.6(h) of the Steamboat Springs Home Rule Charter. 
 

Section 6.   A public hearing on this ordinance shall be held on 
November 6, 2012 at 5:00 P.M. in the Citizens Hall meeting room, Centennial 
Hall, Steamboat Springs, Colorado. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ AND ORDERED PUBLISHED, as provided by law, by 
the City Council of the City of Steamboat Springs, at its regular meeting held on 
the _____ day of ________________, 2012. 
 
 
 
            
      ___________________________ 
      Bart Kounovsky, President 
      Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11.4



 
 
 FINALLY READ, PASSED AND APPROVED this ___ day of 
_____________, 2012. 
 
 
       ___________________________ 
      Bart Kounovsky, President 
      Steamboat Springs City Council 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________ 
Julie Franklin, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

11.5



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 12. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL UPDATES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This is a discussion item only 

12.1



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

AGENDA ITEM # 13. 
 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING NO. 2012-20 
 TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2012  

 

5:05 P.M. 
 
MEETING LOCATION:  Citizens’ Meeting Room, Centennial Hall;  

124 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO 
 
MEETING PROCEDURE: Comments from the Public are welcome at two 
different times during the course of the meeting: 1) Comments no longer than 
three (3) minutes on items not scheduled on the Agenda will be heard under 
Public Comment; and 2) Comments no longer than three (3) minutes on all 
scheduled public hearing items will be heard following the presentation by Staff 
or the Petitioner.  Please wait until you are recognized by the Council President.  
With the exception of subjects brought up during Public Comment, on which no 
action will be taken or a decision made, the City Council may take action on, and 
may make a decision regarding, ANY item referred to in this agenda, including, 
without limitation, any item referenced for “review”, “update”, “report”, or 
“discussion”.  It is City Council’s goal to adjourn all meetings by 10:00 p.m. 
 
A City Council meeting packet is available for public review in the lobby of City 
Hall, 137 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO, or on our website at 
http://steamboatsprings.net/city_council/council_meetings. The e-packet is 
typically available by 1pm on the Friday before the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or at 
the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first). CITY COUNCIL WILL MAKE NO 

DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER.  THOSE ADDRESSING CITY 
COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES BY NAME AND ADDRESS.  ALL 
COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 

 

 
5:00PM SSRA Meeting. 
 
A. ROLL CALL (5:05PM) 

13.1



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

 

 
B.  COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC:  
 

 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND 

ORDINANCES FIRST READINGS 
 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE COUNCIL DELIBERATION AND 
MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION.  ANY MEMBER OF THE COUNCIL OR THE PUBLIC 
MAY WITHDRAW ANY ITEM FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION AT ANY 
TIME PRIOR TO APPROVAL.   
 

 

 
D. PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OR PRESIDENT PRO-TEM WILL READ EACH ORDINANCE TITLE 
INTO THE RECORD. PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE PROVIDED FOR EVERY ORDINANCE.   

 
1. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance adopting the 

budget and setting appropriations for the City of Steamboat 
Springs, Colorado, for and during the period beginning the first day 
of January, 2013, and ending the thirty-first day of December, 
2013.  (Weber) 

 
2. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance approving 

the Fourth Supplemental Budget Appropriation of 2012. (Weber) 
 
3. EMERGENCY ORDINANCE: Moratorium on recreational 

marijuana related facility. (Rae/Foote) 
 

 
E. PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or 

at the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first). CITY COUNCIL WILL 

MAKE NO DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER.  THOSE 
ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES BY NAME 
AND ADDRESS.  ALL COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 

 

 
F. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 

 

 
G. CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS: 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE OR NO COUNCIL 
DELIBERATION AND MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION. A CITY COUNCIL MEMBER 
MAY REQUEST AN ITEM(S) BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR FURTHER 

13.2



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

DISCUSSION.  ALL ORDINANCES APPROVED BY CONSENT SHALL BE READ INTO THE 

RECORD BY TITLE. 

 
4. PROJECT: Mountain Waffle 
 PETITION: Development plan application to locate a food cart 

during the winter season at 2305 Mt. Werner Circle (adjacent to 
Gondola Transit Center). 

 LOCATION: 2305 Mt. Werner Circle and 608 Yampa Street. 
 APPLICANT: Joel Rosenberg, 799 South 10th Street, #2A, 

Philadelphia, PA, (310) 499-3811. 
 PLANNING COMMISSION VOTE: To be heard October 25, 2012. 

 

 
H. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT: 
 Presentation by the Petitioner (estimated at 15 minutes).  Petitioner 

to state name and residence address/location. 
 Presentation by the Opposition. Same guidelines as above. 

 Public Comment by individuals (not to exceed 3 minutes).   
Individuals to state name and residence address/location. 

 City staff to provide a response. 
 

 

 
I. REPORTS 

 
5. City Council  

 
6. Reports 

a. Agenda Review (Franklin): 
1.) City Council agenda for November 20, 2012.  
2.) City Council agenda for December 4, 2012. 

 
7. Staff Reports 

a. City Attorney’s Update/Report. (Lettunich) 
b. Interim Manager’s Report: Ongoing Projects. (Hinsvark) 

 

 
J. OLD BUSINESS 

 
8. Minutes (Franklin) 

a. Regular Meeting 2012-18, October 16, 2012. 
b. Regular Meeting 2012-19, October 30, 2012. 

13.3



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 13, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

 

 
K. ADJOURNMENT     BY: JULIE FRANKLIN, CMC 
        CITY CLERK 

13.4



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

CITY OF STEAMBOAT SPRINGS 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING NO. 2012-21 
 TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012  

 

5:00 P.M. 
 
MEETING LOCATION:  Citizens’ Meeting Room, Centennial Hall;  

124 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO 
 
MEETING PROCEDURE: Comments from the Public are welcome at two 
different times during the course of the meeting: 1) Comments no longer than 
three (3) minutes on items not scheduled on the Agenda will be heard under 
Public Comment; and 2) Comments no longer than three (3) minutes on all 
scheduled public hearing items will be heard following the presentation by Staff 
or the Petitioner.  Please wait until you are recognized by the Council President.  
With the exception of subjects brought up during Public Comment, on which no 
action will be taken or a decision made, the City Council may take action on, and 
may make a decision regarding, ANY item referred to in this agenda, including, 
without limitation, any item referenced for “review”, “update”, “report”, or 
“discussion”.  It is City Council’s goal to adjourn all meetings by 10:00 p.m. 
 
A City Council meeting packet is available for public review in the lobby of City 
Hall, 137 10th Street, Steamboat Springs, CO, or on our website at 
http://steamboatsprings.net/city_council/council_meetings. The e-packet is 
typically available by 1pm on the Friday before the meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or at 
the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first). CITY COUNCIL WILL MAKE NO 
DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER.  THOSE ADDRESSING CITY 
COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES BY NAME AND ADDRESS.  ALL 
COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 

 
 
A. ROLL CALL 
 
 
B.  COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC:  
 

1.  

13.5



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

 
 
C. CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND 

ORDINANCES FIRST READINGS 
 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE COUNCIL DELIBERATION AND 
MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION.  ANY MEMBER OF THE COUNCIL OR THE PUBLIC 
MAY WITHDRAW ANY ITEM FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION AT ANY 
TIME PRIOR TO APPROVAL.   

 
2. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance approving the 

Fourth Supplemental Budget Appropriation of 2012. (Weber) 
 
 
D. PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS 

 
THE CITY COUNCIL PRESIDENT OR PRESIDENT PRO-TEM WILL READ EACH ORDINANCE TITLE 
INTO THE RECORD. PUBLIC COMMENT WILL BE PROVIDED FOR EVERY ORDINANCE.   

 
 

 
E. PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or 

at the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first). CITY COUNCIL WILL 
MAKE NO DECISION NOR TAKE ACTION, EXCEPT TO DIRECT THE CITY MANAGER.  THOSE 
ADDRESSING CITY COUNCIL ARE REQUESTED TO IDENTIFY THEMSELVES BY NAME 
AND ADDRESS.  ALL COMMENTS SHALL NOT EXCEED THREE MINUTES. 

 
 
F. PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 
 
 
G. CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS: 

ITEMS ON THE CONSENT CALENDAR GENERALLY REQUIRE LITTLE OR NO COUNCIL 
DELIBERATION AND MAY BE APPROVED WITH A SINGLE MOTION. A CITY COUNCIL MEMBER 
MAY REQUEST AN ITEM(S) BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR FOR FURTHER 
DISCUSSION.  ALL ORDINANCES APPROVED BY CONSENT SHALL BE READ INTO THE 
RECORD BY TITLE. 

 
3. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE:  
 
4. PROJECT:  
 PETITION:  
 LOCATION: 
 APPLICANT: 
 PLANNING COMMISSION VOTE:  

 
 

13.6



*****TENTATIVE AGENDA FOR TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 20, 2012***** 
This agenda is tentative and the information is subject to change until the agenda is finalized. 
 

H. PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS 
 
PUBLIC HEARING FORMAT: 
•••• Presentation by the Petitioner (estimated at 15 minutes).  Petitioner 
to state name and residence address/location. 

•••• Presentation by the Opposition. Same guidelines as above. 
• Public Comment by individuals (not to exceed 3 minutes).   
Individuals to state name and residence address/location. 

• City staff to provide a response. 
 
5. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE:  

 
 
I. REPORTS 

 
6. City Council  

 
7. Reports 

a. Agenda Review (Franklin): 
1.) City Council agenda for December 4, 2012.  
2.) City Council agenda for December 18, 2012. 

 
8. Staff Reports 

a. City Attorney’s Update/Report. (Lettunich) 
b. Manager’s Report: Ongoing Projects. (Roberts) 

 
 
J. ADJOURNMENT     BY: JULIE FRANKLIN, CMC 
        CITY CLERK 

13.7



 

 

AGENDA ITEM # 14. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORTS: 
 

City Attorney’s Update/Report 
City Charter – Amendment – information/discussion 

 
Interim Manager’s Report: Ongoing Projects 

 
The above are discussion items only 

 
 

City Manager Search Process 
 

Materials follow this page 
 

 

14.1



AGENDA ITEM # 14b.1. 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION FORM 
                                                                                                          
          
FROM:  Anne Small, Director of General Services (Ext. 249) 
 
THROUGH:  Bart Kounovsky, City Council President 
    
DATE:   October 30, 2012 
 
ITEM:   City Manager recruitment options. 
 
NEXT STEP:  Council direction. 
                                                                                                                   
 
                      X     DIRECTION  
                      X     INFORMATION 
                       
                                                                     
I.   REQUEST OR ISSUE:   
 
Staff requests Council direction on next steps for recruiting a new City Manager. 
 
II.  RECOMMENDED ACTION / NEXT STEP: 
 
Staff makes no recommendations. 
  
III. FISCAL IMPACTS:  
  
 Peckham & McKenney $18,500 plus $7,500 in expenses 
 Mercer Group   $15,600 plus $3,500 in expenses 
 Mercer Group & Staff Approximately $10,000 plus expenses, plus staff time 

In-house    Staff time plus advertising costs (approximately   
    $2,500) 

     
IV. BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
 
As required by the City’s Home Rule Charter, Council shall appoint a City Manager within 
six months after any vacancy exists in this position.  Peckham & McKenney (P&M), a 
consulting firm specializing in executive searches for local governments, conducted the 
recruitment process for the past three City Managers. P&M offers a full service process 
and is very familiar with the Steamboat community. Staff also contacted the Mercer 
Group, who has significant experience recruiting city managers for resort towns. Mercer 
also offers turn-key search services and a hybrid of services where staff participates on 

14.2



the front-end of the process and the consultant performs screening, preliminary 
interviews, selection of candidates for Council to review and coordinating the interview 
process.  

 
Alternatively, the City’s Human Resources division can provide the required search 
services without using a consultant. The brochure prepared for the most recent 
recruitment can be updated and ads can be placed on the City’s website, ICMA and CML 
websites and in other industry publications.  Staff will seek Council’s direction on methods 
for screening the resumes, conducting preliminary interviews, and identifying the finalists 
for interview by Council.   
 
V. LEGAL ISSUES: 

 
None. 
 
VI.   CONFLICTS OR ENVIRONMENTAL ISSUES: 
 
Costs to hire an outside consultant. 
 
VII.  SUMMARY AND ALTERNATIVES: 
 
Council may opt to: 
 

1. Hire one of the two recommended consultants 
2. Hire the Mercer Group at a lower cost to share work elements with staff 
3. Direct staff to perform all elements of the recruitment in-house 
4. Provide alternate direction 

 

14.3


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL (5:00 PM)
	COMMUNITY REPORTS/CITY COUNCIL DISCUSSION TOPIC:
	1. Golf Committee Interviews. 
	[communication_golf interviews.docx]
	[Golf_Robinson1.pdf]
	[9_26_12_Robinson_Rec1.pdf]
	[9_26_12_Counts1.pdf]
	[Golf_Vanderbloemen-21.pdf]
	[9_27_12_Labor1.pdf]
	[9_25_12_Aric James Fleming1.pdf]
	[9_28_12_Seitz1.pdf]

	2. US Pro Cycling Local Organizing Committee announcing their application for the 2013 event, requesting sponsorship and asking for a letter of support.
	[communication_ 2013 race.docx]
	[USAPCC 2013- City of Steamboat Request 10-18-12.docx]
	[ProCyclingChallengeSupport_2013.docx]

	3. Information, possible motion concerning the Police/Fire Facility location.
	[communication_October 30 _Police_Fire.docx]


	CONSENT CALENDAR: MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES FIRST READINGS
	4. RESOLUTION:  A resolution approving the 2013 Operating Plan and budget of the Downtown Steamboat Springs Business Improvement District and reappointing two members of the Board of Directors. 
	[communication_CityCouncil - BID.docx]
	[1mary_carter_administrator@grimshawharring com_20120927_103446.pdf]
	[resolution_2012 Resol Apprv 2013 Op Plan.doc]
	[2013 Op plan_budget_administrator@grimshawharring com_20120927_103457.pdf]

	5. RESOLUTION:  A resolution acknowledging appointments to the Routt County Combined Communications Center Advisory Board.  
	[communication_RCCommBoardRepsComForm.doc]
	[resolution_Newappointments_RCCC_10302012.doc]

	6. RESOLUTION:  A resolution reappointing Paul Sachs as the Steamboat Springs Municipal Judge, reaffirming the appointment of Jonathan Melvin as Deputy Municipal Judge and fixing compensation for both positions for 2013 and 2014. 
	[communication_Judge_Appt_2013_2014.doc]
	[resolution_Judge_appointment_2013_2014.doc]

	7. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance adopting the budget and setting appropriations for the City of Steamboat Springs, Colorado, for and during the period beginning the first day of January, 2013, and ending the thirty-first day of December, 2013.
	[communication_2013Budget1stReading.docx]
	[Copy of Summarypage1.pdf]
	[ordinance_BudOrd2013.doc]

	8. FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance approving the Fourth Supplemental Budget Appropriation of 2012. 
	[communication_4th Supplemental 2012.doc]
	[HabitatLoanAgreement.doc]
	[HabitatDeedofTrust.doc]
	[HabitatPromissoryNote.doc]
	[ordinance_2012 - 4th supplemental.docx]


	PUBLIC HEARING: ORDINANCE SECOND READINGS
	9. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance vacating utility easements located in Airport Meadows, Filing 1, Lots 1 and 2, and providing an effective date and setting a hearing date.  
	[communication__easementvacation_1st_read.doc]
	[Airport Meadows Attach 1.pdf]
	[ordinance_airport meadows.doc]
	[exhibt A.pdf]

	10. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE:  An ordinance authorizing the City Manager to impose and lift fire restrictions; repealing all conflicting ordinances; and providing an effective date. 
	[communication_Fire Restriction Ordinance 2012.doc]
	[ordinance_FireRestrictionsOrd.doc]


	PUBLIC COMMENT: Public Comment will be provided at 7 p.m., or at the end of the meeting, (whichever comes first).
	PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT
	CONSENT CALENDAR - PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS:
	PUBLIC HEARING – PLANNING COMMISSION REFERRALS
	11. SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE: An ordinance amending the International Building Code 2006 Edition in Chapter 5, Article 1, Section 5-3: International Building Code-Amendments and Deletions to add an exception to allow a boarding house to comply with the International Residential Code.
	[communication_Report-2nd Reading.doc]
	[ordinance_International_Building_Code_Bed__breakfast.doc]


	REPORTS
	12. City Council
	[Filler City Council Updates.doc]

	13. Reports
	[11_13_2012_agenda.pdf]
	[11_20_2012_agenda.doc]
	a. Agenda Review: 
	1. City Council agenda for November 13, 2012. 
	2. City Council agenda for November 20, 2012.


	14. Staff Reports
	[Filler Staff Reports.doc]
	[CM search options ccform.doc]
	a. City Attorney’s Update/Report. 
	1. City Charter – Amendment – information/discussion.

	b. Interim Manager’s Report: Ongoing Projects. 
	1. City Manager Search Process. 



	ADJOURNMENT

